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Dear Sharcholder,

Annual General Meeting and Annual Report

1 have pleasure in inviting you to attend our Annual General Meeting and have
enclosed: -

Notice of Meeting(including Explanatory Memorandum)
Proxy Form

2006 Year in Review

Annual Report

The meeting will be held at - 2pm on Monday 27 November, 2006
Cavalier Room, Level 1, Christie's Corporate Centre,
- 56 Berry Street, North Sydney.

_ - - __The enclosed brochure, 2006 Year in Review”, summarises your Company-s progress
to dute. This is designed as a quick easy-to-reczd snapshot.

Our major achievements during the year have been a substantial increase in the share
price, increased market capitalization, the elimination of long term secured debt and
the commencement of mining gold ore.

2006 was a very good year for Citigold shareholders and to further keep Directors
focused on growing the share price we are seeking your approval to issue options that
are linked to shareholder interests - growing gold production and increasing the share
price. Also, if the options are exercised, they will bring in substantial funds to your
Company. We are planning for continued growth in 2007 and beyond.

Thank you for your continued support and I look forward to seeing you at Christies.

Yours Sincerely

John Foley
Chairman

Citigold Corporation Limited
ACN 060397177
19 Lang Parade, Milton Qld 4064 PO Box 1909, Milton Qlid 4064, Australia
Telephone: +61 7 3870 8000, Facsimile: +61 7 3870 8111
Email: info@citigold.com







Notice of Annual General Meeting - 2005

W corporation

Notice is hereby given that an annual general meeting of shareholders of Citigold Corporation Limiled ("Company™)
will be held at Cavalier Reom, Leve! 1, Christie Corporate Conference Centre, 56 Berry Street, North Sydney, NSW at
2:00 pm on Monday 27 November 2006 ("Meeting”).

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS

To receive and consider the financial statements of the Company and the reports of the Directors and Audilors for
the year ended 30 June 2006.

2. RESOLUTIONS
To consider and if thought fit, pass the following rasolutions as ordinary resolutions:
RESOLUTION 1 - Re-Election of Mr Terence Willsteed

‘That Mr Terence Willsteed, as a consequence of his mandatory ceasing to act as a Director, being eligible
offers himseif for election as a Director of the Company, be elected as a Director of Citigold Corporation
Limited."

RESOLUTION 2 - Authorise the lssue of 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares

“That in accordance with the provisions of Australian Stock Exchange ("ASX") Listing Rule 7.1 and for all other
purposes, the Company and the directors of the Company are hereby authorised to issue 20,000,000 fully paid
ordinary shares on the terms and conditions as contained in the attached Explanatory Memorandum®.

RESOLUTION 3 - Remuneration Repot 7~ —

“That the Remuneration Report section of the direclors’ report for the Company for the year ended 30 June
2006 be adopted.”

Note: the vole on this resolution is advisory only and does not bind tha Company or its Directors.
RESOLUTION 4 - Issue of options to MrFoley -~~~ — o

“That pursuant to Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules 7.4 and 10.11 and all other
purposes, shareholders- approve the issue of 3,000,000 options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the
Company to Mr John Foley, Non Executive Chairman, on the terms and conditions described in the Explanatory
Notes™.

RESOLUTION 5 - Issue of options to Mr Lynch
“That pursuant to Chapler 2E of the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules 7.1 and 10.11 and all other

purposes, shareholders-approve the issue of 10,000,000 options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in =~
‘ : . the Company to Mr Mark Lynch, Managirg Director, on-the terms and conditions described in the Explanatory

‘ Notes™.
| RESOLUTION 6 - Issue of options to Mr Willsteed

“That pursuant fo Chapler 2E of the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules 7.9 and 10.11 and all other
purposes, shargholders approve the issue of 760,000 options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the
Company to Mr Terence Willsteed, Non — Executive Director, on the terms and conditions described in'the ™~
Explanatory Notes”.

By Order of the Board 2 o
Matthew Martin

Company Secretary
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VOTING EXCLUSIONS

In relation to the following resolution the Chairman will disregard any voles cast by or on behalf of the
person{s) named below and any associate of such person(s) when defermining the result of the resolution
except where;

. The vote is cast by that person (excluded from voting) as proxy, appointed in writing for a person who is
entitled to vote, in accordance with the directions on the proxy form and is not cast on behalf of a person
excluded from voting or their associates; or

e ltis cast by the Chairman as a proxy for a person who is entifled to vote, in accordance with a direction
on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides.

Resolution 2 — Any persons who may participate in the proposed issue as well as a person who might obtain a
benefit, except a benefit solely in the capacity of a holder of ordinary securities, if the resolution
is passed

Resolution 4 - Mr John Foley

Resolution 5 - Mr Mark Lynch =

Resolution 6 — Mr Terence Willsteed

_ VOTING ENTITLEMENTS

For the purpose of voting at the meeting, the Directors have determined that all shares in the Gompany are
taken to be held by the persons who are registered as holding them at 5pm on 24 November 2006. The
entitlement of members to vote at the meeting will be determined by reference to that time.

PROXIES

A shareholder entitied to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy, who need not be a
sharehofder of the Company. If a shareholder is entitled to” cast two or more voles they may appoint two
proxies and may specify the percentage of votes each proxy is appointed fo exercise. If a shareholder
appoints two proxies and their appointment does not specify the proportion or number of the shareholder's
votes the proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise one half of the shareholder's votes. If a shareholder
appoints two proxies, neither may vote-on a show of hands.

e RERRA e e btk s — e ——

The_proxy form must be signed .by the shareholder or the shareholder's attorney. Proxies given by
corporations must be executed in accordance with the Corporations Act.

“The proxy form and the power of attomey (if any) under which it is signed (or a certified copy of it) must be
received at the Company's office at 19 Lang Parade Milton Queensland 4064, OR by facsimile on 07 3870
8111 at least 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting or any adjournment of that Meeting.

If a representative of a corporate shareholder is fo attend the meeting pursuant o section 2500 of the
Corporations Act, a certificate of appointment of the representative must be produced prior to the admission to
the Meeting. A form of certificate of appoiniment can be obtained from the Company's share registry,
Computershare Investor Services Ply Ltd.
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The information in this document relales to the resolutions fo be considered at the annual general meeting of members
of the Company {Resolutions) to be held on 27 November 2006. This Explanatory Memorandum should be read in
conjunction with the Notice of Annual General Meeting and forms part of the Natics of Annual General meeting.

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS

This ilem doas nol require voling by shareholders. It is intended to provide an opportunity for shareholders to ask
questions on the financial statements and reports. The auditors of the Company will be present at the meeting and
available to answer any quastions about the preparation and content of the auditor's reporl and the conduct of the audit

2. RESOLUTIONS

The following are ordinary resclufions. For each resolution to be passed, It must be passed by a simple majority of the
votes cast by shareholders or eligible proxy helders entitied lo vote.

l RESOLUTION 1 - Re-Election of Mr Terence Wilisteed

in accordance with the Company's Constitution, Mr Terence Willsteed BE{(Min)Hons, BA, FAusIMM, MSME, having been
appointed during the year as a director to fill a casual vacancy and, as a consequence of his mandatory ceasing to act
as a Director and being eligible, offers himself for election as a Director of the Company.

Mr Willsteed holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Mining) Honours and is a Fellow of the Auslralasian
Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and has, since, 1973, been the principal of consuiting mining
engineers Tarence Willsteed & Associates. His forly year career in the mining industry has

" included sentor line operational and engineering positions with Zinc Corporation, Mt Isa Mines Ltd
and Consolidated Goldfields Ltd. Other directorships include International Ferro Metals Limited,
European Gas Limited, Climax Mining Ltd, Diamond Rose N.L and Goldsearch Limited.

During his time with Mt Isa Mines Ltd Mr Willsteed held the positien of Mine Ptanning Engineer and Assistant
Underground Superintendent. Mr Willsteed also held the position of Grotp Mining Engineer for Consolidated Gold Fields
(Austy Limited and Manager and Consulting Engineer for Watts Griffis and McOuat (Australia) Pty Ltd.

In his consulting experisnce Mr Willstead has besn involved in the assessment and development of a wide range of
mineral, coal and oil shale projects, and has participated in the management of developing and operating mineral
projects both in Australia and internationally

|7RESOLUTION 2 - Authorise the Issue of 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares

approval of sharehdlders to 15% 61 thé number of Shares on issue, subject 1o certain exempﬂons and adjustments. The 7 7

passing of this reselution will aliow the Company to issue-up to 20,000,000 new ordinary shares at a minimum price that
is at least 80% of the average market price for ordinary shares over the last 5 trading days for a period of three months
after the resolution is passed without unpactzng on the 15% rule.

Plgase note a similar resolution was passed last year and only a portion of the shares appmved for placement by the
shareholders were allotted.

in accordance with the provisions of the ASX Listing Rules the following information is provided:

(a) The maximum number of shares the company will allot and issue is 20,000,000 fully paid erdinary shares

(b) the Piacement Shares will be offered to investors which fall within one or more classes of exemptions specified in
section 708 of the Corporations Act;

{c) the Placement Shares may be issued and allotted no fater than 3 months from the date of the meeting;

(d) the rights atlaching to the Placement Shares are identical in all respects to the existing ordinary shares on issue in

the Company;
3
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(e) the Company will make application to quote the Placement Shares on ASX;

{f} the funds raised will be used for the purposes of advancing the business of the Company which may include, bul is
not be limited to, working capital, debt reduction and acquisitions; and

(9) the Placement Shares will not be issued to any related party of the Company (within the maaning of the ASX Listing
Rules.

The item is an ordinary resolution and as such, to be passed, requires the approval of the majority of the shareholders
being eligible to vote, voling in person or by proxy at the Meeting. The Directors unanimously recommend that
shareholders approve this resoluticn.

RESOLUTION 3 - Remuneration Report

The remuneration report of the Company is included in the Directors Report within the Annual Report sent to all
shareholders. The Corporations Act 2001 requires that a resolution be put to shareholders to adopt the remuneration
repart. The vole on the resolution is advisory only and does not bind the Directors of the Company. A reasonable
opportunity will be provided for discussion of the remuneration report at the meeting.

RESOLUTION 4 - Issue of options to Mr Foley
RESOLUTION 5 - Issue of options to Mr Lynch
RESOLUTION 6 - Issue of options to Mr Wilisteed

Resolution 4, 5 and 6 relate to the proposed issue of options to John Foley, Mark Lynch and Terance Wilisteed {or their
nominees) (Recipients) to be provided as an incentive for future performance as well as recognition of the contribution
to the future success of the Company. The full terms and conditions are set out below. o

The options will have an exercise price of $0.50, vest over a period of two years, be subject to performance conditions
being achieved and expire 3 years after vesting. The performance cenditions are listed below.

T PeTarmance Canation “
1 Nil acem
2 Share Price of $0.73 or production rate of 50,000 0z p.a. 15 December 2007 35%
3 Share Price of $1.00 or production rate of 100,000 oz p.a. 15 Dacember 2008 5%

The total amount of options available o each director in each tranche is as follows

"7 The Company draws to shareholders' atfention that aithough the options are given to the directors for no consideration,
the Directors will receive no henefits under this arrangement unless the perfarmance conditions are met and that the
combined cost to the Recipients for exercising all the options will be $7.875 million.

Also in 2001 Citigold's Shareholders approved the allotment of 15 million options to directors exercisable at 15 cents.
The vast majority of thesa options eventually lapsed without being exercised. The proposed Directors options in the
current proposal are similar in quantum but will be more closely linked to performance this time.

In accordance with the requirements of Chapter 2E, and in particular with section 219 of the Corporations Act, the
following information is provided to shareholders to allow them to assess the proposed grant of options by the Company
to the Recipien! Directors

For the purpose of Chapter 2E, the Recipients are related parties of the Company to whom the propasad Resolutions
wouid permil the financial benefits to be given.
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The nature of the financial bengfit to be given to Mr Mark Lynch is the grant of 10,000,000 options. The nature of the
financial benefit to be given Mr John Foley is the grant of 3,000,000 options. The nalure of the financial benefit to be
given Mr Terrence Willsteed is the grant of 750,000 options.

As at the date of the Explanatory Memorandum, the ordinary fully paid shares of the Company was 803,173,212, The
maximum number of shares on issue following the exercise of all options to the recipient Directors will be 616,923,212,
This will result in a dilution of all other shareholders’ holdings in the company by approximately 2%.

The following chart shows the annua! fees and remuneration, including related entities, each director receives from the
Company

1 L] 1

Assuming Resolutions 4, 5 and 6 are approved by shareholders and subject to satisfaction of the conditions relating to
the exercise of options and the subsequent exercise of the oplions by the Recipients, the Recipients will be entitled to
the following securifies in the Company,

Mr John Foley 3,000,000 4,493,418 7,493,418
Mr Mark Lynch 10,000,000 86,774,613 96,774,613
Mr Terence Willsteed 750,000 - 750,000

The highest trading price of the shares of the Company in the last 12 months was 57 cents per share. The lowest
trading price in the last 12 months was 11.5 cents per share. The most recent closing price as al the date of this
Explanatory Memorandum was 43 cents per share. S

The Racipients do not wish to make a recommendation in relation to Resolutions 4, 5, and 6 as each has a financial
interest in the ouicome of those Resolufions.

The options will be granted by the Recipients for ne consideration and therefore no funds will be raised by the grant of
the optians to the Recipients. Any funds raised from time to time due to the exercise of any eptions will be used for
working capital.

_-Other than the information set out in this Explanatory Memorandum the Company believes there-is no other information- - -————
that would be reasonably required by shareholders in order lo decide whether it is in the best interests of the Company
to pass Resolutions 4, 5, and 6.
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Details Concerning Valuation of Director options

The options to ba granted to the Directors will not be quoted on the ASX and as such have no actual market value.

Howsver under Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act we are required to provide an indicative valuation for the options to
be granted to the Directors. The table below outlines an indicative valualion for the oplions to be granted to the
Recipients derived al by using the Black-Scholes options Pricing Model.

. 00,0
2 $0.17 1,050,000 §178,500

3 §0.50 $0.19 1,050,000 $199,500

Total 3,000,000 $504,000

1 $0.50 $0.14 3000000 - - $ 420,000

2 $0.50 $0.17 3500000  § 595,000 L
3. . 3050 $0.19 3500000 § 665,000
Total 10,0000 $1,680,000. __

1 50, 225,000 $ 31,000

2 $0.50 262,500 $ 44,625
3 $0.50 _ 262,500 _ § 49,875
Total - 750,000 $125,500

The valuation was made using the Black-Scholes options Pricing Model on the basis of the following assumptions
regarding the various inputs that comprise the valuation model:

s The shares of the Company are quoted and remain quoted on the ASX for the life of the options.
s As atthe date of this Explanatory Memorandurm, the Company has nol forecast any future dividend payments. For
the purposes of this valuation.it has been assumed that the Company’s projected annual dividend yieldisnil. = - .

«  Avolatility factor of 46.98% was assumed based on the volatility of a basket of comparable companies shares over
7 the'last 24 months. S -

+  Arisk free rate of 5.75% which is the 5 year Commonwealth Treasury Bond as at 10 October 2006.

ASX Listing Rules

ASX Listing Rule 10.11 prohibits the issue of securities to a director of a company unless the_approval of the
shareholders of the company is cbtained. Listing Rule 7 broadly prohibits a company from issue more than 15% of its
shares in any one year. Pursuant to Listing Rule 7.2 (Exception 14), if shareholder approval is given under Listing Rule
10.11, further approval is not required for the purposes of Listing Rule 7.1.

Listing Rule 10.13 sets out a number of matters which must be included in a nofice of meeting requesting shareholder
approval under Listing Rule 10.11. In accordance with Listing Rule 10.13, the following information is provided 1o
shareholders in relation to Resolutions 4, 5, and 6:
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(a) The Company will grant up to 13,750,000 options 1o the Recipient Directors. [ all options are exercised by the
Recipient Directors, the Recipient Directors will be entitled to 13,750,000 shares.

(b} The opticns are granfed to each of the Recipient Directors for no consideration and, therefore, no funds will be
raised by the grant of the options to the Recipient Directors. Any funds raised from time to time due to the
exercise of any options will be used as the Board sees fit.

(c) The Company acknowledges that the issue of oplions to non-executive directors is not in accordance with
recommendation 9.3 of the ASX Prnciples of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice
Recommendations. Despite the Recommendations the Company considers it appropriate to issue these
options lo its small team of non-executive Direclors so as to align the Directors interest with thal of
shareholders along with advancing the business in a manner in compliance with good corporate governance.

(d) For details of the exercise prices and expiry dates of the options please refer to above.

(e) The options will be granted to the Recipient Directors on a date which is not more than one month after the date
of the General Meeting the subjact of this Explanatory Memorandum.
() Far details of the indicative valuations of the options, please refer above.

(g) The terms and conditions of the options 1o be issued to the Recipient Directors are set oul in Schedule 1 to this
Explanatory Memorandum.

Section 195 of the Corporations Act

considered. Resolutions 4, 5, and 6 seek approval to grant options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company
to all of the directors of the Company.

As all directors are considered to hold a material personal interest In the consideration of the matler, a quorum cannot be
formed lo consider the matter al board level. However, by reason of section 185(4), the dlrectors are permitted in such

~ instances to put the matter before the sharehnlders lo consider and resolve.

Section 195 of the Corporations Act provides, in essence, that a director of a public company may not vote or be presént™ * -
- during meetings of directors’ when matlers in which that director holds a "material personal interest” are being
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The options to be granted by the Company to the Recipients, in accordance with Resolutions 4, 5 and 6 are Io be issued
on the following terms and Conditions;

1. The sumber of Optiens in the Tranche, the performance cenditions applicable to all Options in the Tranche, and the
required date for achievement of the performance conditions are set out in the following table.

1 Nil 15 December 2006 30%
2 Share Price of $0.73 or production rata of 50,000 oz p.a. | 15 December 2007 35%
3 Share Price of $1.00 or production rate of 100,000 oz p.a. | 15 December 2008 35%

2. Each Option will entitle the Opticnholdet to subscribe for 1 fully paid ordinary share in the Company (“Shars") upon

axercise of the Option and payment of the Exercise Price.

3. The QOptions in each Tranche will only be exercisable if the performance condition for that Tranche is achieved

before the required date and/or 6 menths post the required date.

4. Each Option will be exercisable at an exercise price of $0.50 ("Exercise Price’).

5. The Options in each Tranche will only become exercisable {"Vest’) if and when the performance condition for that
Tranche is achieved for a pericd of 25 or more conseculive or non consecutive day's pre the required date andfor 6
manths post requlrad date
("Vasting Date") and will end at § p.m. Brisbane time and on the dale being 3 years from the Vesting Date. -

Each Option will be exercisable by giving notice of exercise to the Company on the appropriate notice of options

“exercise form, and paying the-Exercise Prica of the Option. .

8. Options will not confer any entitlement to receive dividends declared and paid by the Company, nor an entitliement

to vote at general mestings of the Company.

9. Subject to the Company's constitution, each Share issued on the exercise of an Option will rank equally in all
respects with other issued Shares.

.
i

10. The Company will not apply o ASX for.official quotation of the Options:~ .. - o -

R 11. The Company will apply for official quotation by ASX of the Shares issued upon exermse of Optlons within the ime
period required by the ASX Listing Rules:
12. Subject to the ASX Listing rules and the Corporations Act neither an Optien nor the Optionholder will be assignable
or fransferable except to an entity controfled by the Director or in case of death lo the deceased’s personal
representative.

13. If the Optionholder is a company, Options will not become exercisable, or if it already vested, Options will cease to be

-~ —— - axeicisableif-the Director.ceasas-to-central the Optionholder.

14. If the Optionholder holds unexercised Options when the Director's employment with the Company terminates. the
unexercised Options will fapse as follows:
a. W the Exercise Period has not commenced, the Options will lapse immediately upon termination of employment;
b. If the Exercise Period has commenced, the Options will lapse at the end of the Exercise Period or at the end of

12 months after employment ceased, which ever is closer;

15. Options nol exercised prior to the expiry of the Exercise Period will lapse at the end of the Exercise Period.

16. If a takeover bid (as defined in the Corporations Act) is made for Shares all Options will be exercisable during the
offer period regardiess of the Exercise Period and whether the relevant Performance condition has been satisfied.

17. In the even! of a reorganization of the capital of the Company, the rights of the Optionholder will ba changed, at that
time, to the extent nacessary to comply with the Listing Rules of ASX applying to a reorganization of capital.

18. If the capital of the Company is reconstructed, the number of options and/or the Exercise Price of the oplions will be
correspondingly reconstructed in a manner which will not resull in any additional benefits being conferred cn
Optionheiders which are net conferred on Shareholders,

&







PROXY FORM
Annual General Meeting 2006

Shareholder Name:

Company Name (if applicable)

Account Designation:
Address:
Suburb: State; Post Code:
Appointment of Proxy
I"'We being a member/s of Citigold Corporation Limited and entitled to attend and vote hereby appoint:
————=1 The Chairman e zpar ] Name of proxy - If you are not appointing the Chairman of

the Meeting as your proxy please write here the full name
of individual or body corparate {excluding the regislered
Security holder) you are appointing as your proxy.

3
&

ofthe Meeting OR ‘
{mark with an 'X') e —

or failing the individual or body corporate named, or if no individual or bady corporate is named, the Chairman of the meating, as my/our proxy to
vote in accordance with the fellowing directions o, if no directions have been. given, as the proxy.sees fit at-the Annual General Meeting.of the — -

Company to be held on Monday 27 November, 2006 commencing at 2. 00pm and at any ad;ournment fof the maeung . The chairperson intends to
vote undirected proxies in favour of all resolutions.

Voting directions to your proxy please mark X to Indicate your dlrect:ons
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

For Against  Abstaln
To re-elect Mr Terence Willsteed as a Director of the Company ( ) { ) { )
To autharise the issue of 20,000,000 new ordinary sharas in the Company ( ) ) (

{ )

To approve the Remuneration Report as disclosed in the Annual Report () ()

for the year ended 30 June 2006 - . - .

To approve the Issue of options 1o Mr Foley o ( t ) { )

To approve the Issue of options lo Mr Lynch : ( { ) { )
o ( { ) { )

To approve the Issue of options to Mr Willsteed

® o A WL M o=

)
)
)
)

* If you mark the abslain box for a particular item you are directing your proxy not fo vote on thet Hem on & show of haends or on a polf and that
your shares are not to be counted in computing the required majonty on a poll.

__PLEASE SIGN HERE  This section must be signed in accordance with the instructions below to enable your dlrechons to by |mplemenled

Individual or Securlly holder 1 Security Holder 2 Security Holder 3

T— = A et R T T IR T A TR I ok ST A A T A A TSR T TSNS YDA
£ s 2

3
:

R i I i Y e g A A

YR
4

T T PR R T

Indlvidua'USol.e Director & Sole Direstor 7 - DlredorlCompmy Sec:etary
Company Secretary

PROXY INSTRUCTIONS

1. Any appointed proxy must be a natural person.

2. A member who is enfitled to ¢cast 2 or more votes may appoint 1 or 2 proxies to attend and vote at a meeting. If you appoint another proxy
you should insert the proportion ar number of your voling rights given to the proxy named in this form. If you do nol insert this proportion or
number then each proxy may exercise haif of your votes. An additiona! proxy form for the other proxy will ba supplied on request,

3. Joint holders should all sign this form. Companies should execule this form under common seal or by an officer or attornay duly authorised.
If this form is executed under Power of Attorney, a certificate of non-revocation of Power of Attorney should be compleed. The Power of
Attomney should be sent with this form if it has not already been noted by the Company.

4. To be effective the proxy form must be received by the Company at least 48 hours before the mesting. The proxy form will be received by
the Company if received at Citigold Corporation Limited, PO Box 1909, MILTON QLD 4064 or faxed fo: Aftenticn: Company
Secretary, Citigold Corporation Limited, Fax: (07) 3870 8111.






www.citigeold.com

corporation

ACN 060 397177

Financial Report
for the year ended
30 June 2006

Citigold Corporation Limited and Controlled Entities - Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2006 pl




CONTENTS

Review of Operations

Directors’ Report

Auditors’ Independence Declaration

Corporate Governance

Consolidated income statement

Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the financial statements

Directors’ Declaration

Auditors Independent Audit Report

Corporate Directory

Citigold Corporation Limited and Controlled Entities - Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 fune 2006

Page

10

15

16

20

21

22

23

24

45

46

48

P2



Aeld ¥V AAs VT ol Mt H A sANl R E AL LY

ACHIEVEMENTS

Assets increased 36%

Share price increased 129%

Market capitalization trebled

Warrior mine on target for gold production
Sunburst mine development planning commenced
Zero injuries for the year

Secured loan repaid in full

STRATEGIC BUSINESS SUMMARY

Citigold Corporation is an emerging goid producer controlling Australia’s richest goldfield located at
Charters Towers in North Queensland. The mesothermal gold deposit has previously produced 6.6
million ounces (oz) of gold at 34 g/t. The Inferred Mineral Resource is 10 million oz of gold (23
million Mt @ 14 g/t Au) with potential to expand. Gold output is planned to increase from 40,000 oz
to 250,000 oz per year with a mine life of 30 years. Four mines are planned with an average cash cost
to produce gold under A$250 per oz. The first mine, Warrior, begins gold production in 2006 at 40,000
OZ per yedr.

SHAREHOLDER VALUE INCREASES

During the past financial year youw company’s market capitalisation has trebled from A$60 millionas
at 4 July 2005 to A$181 million as at 30 June 2006. During this time the share price moved from 14
cents to 32 cents, an increase of 129%. This is a reflection of a rising gold price, increased market
sentiment for gold and that an increasing number of sharcholders are appreciating the valuable asset
that Citigold has in the rich Charters Towers Goldfield and the 10 million ounce gold deposit.

Citigold has in place a strategy to unlock the enormous shareholder wealth contained in this rich
goldfield. This will begin with the initial production from the Warrior mine and then grow as the other
mines are developed. Citigold is cost effective in spending shareholders money and has 1o date
established the goldfield and infrastructure to extract the gold at a far less financial cost than its
Australian peers. Austrahan dollar gold prices of over A3750 an ounce will generate substantial
revenue for the Company.

FINANCIAL POSITION STRENGTHENED

During the financial year, loans were substantially reduced, culminating in the post balance date
repayment of the secured loan that has been in existence since 1998, The company is now free of
significant long term debt and the lien over the company’s assets is removed.

Warrior mine budgets show that Citigold will generate a cash surplus from operations. During the year
Citigold received strong financial support from our shareholder base through share placements and
.Share Purchase Plan offerings. This relationship aims to ensure that the main benefit of the success of
the Company will be for its shareholders. Similarly our joint venture negotiations to fund the second
mine Sunburst are being pursued in a form that will add value for shareholders. These negotiations
have been underway for some time and are advanced and continuing. The joint venture aims to ensure
funding for gold production of 80,000 ounces per year from Sunburst. With Sunburst in operation the
combined output from Citigold’s Charters Towers operations is budgeted at 120,000 ounces per year.
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With sustained plus A$800/0z gold revenue prices the Warrior mine cash flows indicate that Citigold
could intemally fund the development of the second mine, Sunburst. At this time we intend to pursue
the joint venture path because it would accelerate the increase in gold production and allow us to
commence development of the third mine, Brilliant. Warrior is just the start and therefore other value
adding funding options are also under consideration to develop the other mines and grow gold
production Further details will be released as they come to hand.

The Convertible Notes (Notes) issued by Citigold and listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)
code ‘CTOG’ continue to provide a high rate of return for investors. The Notes issued at 40c continue
to trade above their 40c issue price. The Notes pay a base 12% p.a. interest rate, plus a bonus rate
based on the AS$ gold price, and investors receive a cheque each quarter from Citigold. The increased
gold price meant that Note holders continue to receive an interest rate well above the base rate.

CITIGOLD’S ASSETS

The overall Charters Towers Gold Project non-current assets have been independently valued as at 30
June 2006 and have increased to A$155 million, an increase of 36% over the asset valuation of
A$114 million in 2005. Citigold is required to value its non-current assets each year in accordance
with the Australian Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

Citigold Corporation controls Queenshnd’s largest and highest grade major gold deposit of 10 million
ounces of gold, comprising Inferred Mineral Resources of 23 million tonnes at 14 g/t gold. The
assessment and quantification of Citigold’s gold Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves is another
important development towards realising the substantial value contained within the rich asset that is
the Charters Towers goldfield. The assessment of the gold resources at Charters Towers confirmed that
Citigold's drilling data base matches the historic high gold grades, that produced 6.6 million ounces of
gold, of 27 metre- grams per tonne in-sitw ’

Citigold’s assets include a gold processing plant and tailings dam capable of handling 340,000 tonnes
per year. Underground mining equipment has been acquired, including twin-boom blast-hole drilling
jumbos, haul trucks and loaders, and an electro- hydraulic diamond-drill rig for exploration drilling. At
least four adjacent mines are planned to be developed at Charters Towers, taking production to
250,000 ounces per year over the next four years.

MINERAL RESOURCES AND ORE RESERVES

Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves remain unchanged from last year. At 3G June 2006, the
Resources and Reserves are as tabled below:

Category Tonnes | Grade Cut-off Contained
g/t Au Ounces
Inferred Mineral Resources | 23,000,000 14 3 metre-grams per | 10,000,000
tonne
Indicated Mineral Resources 740,000 15 7 grams per tonne 370,000
(includes Probable Qre Reserve)
Probable Ore Reserves 800,000 13 7 grams per tonne 330,000

(contlained within Indicated
Mineral Resource}
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Gold Project May 2005 and the “Report on the Indicated Mineral Resources and Probable Ore
Reserves for the Charters Towers Gold Project, August 2005 which can be found on the Citigold web
site at www_citigold.com (click on “Reports™ then “Technical reports™)

The following statements apply in respect of the information in this report that relates to Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves:

The information is based on, and accurately reflects, information compiled by Mr. Christopher Alan John Towsey, BSc
(Hons), MSc, Dip Ed, FAusIMM{CP), MMICA, MAIG, MSME, who is a Corporate Member of the Australasian Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy and the Australion Institute of Geoscientists. Christopher Alan John Towsey has relevant
experience in relation to the mineralisation being reported on to gualify as a Competent Person as defined in the Joint Ore
Reserves Committee (JORC) Australasiun Code for Reporting of Identified Mineral Resourees and Ore Reserves. Mr.
Towsey is employved full time by Citigold Corporation Limited as Chief Operating Officer, and has consented in writing to
the inclusion in this repori of his compiled information in the form and context in which it appears.

WARRIOR GOLD MINE
Underground Operations

The Warrior Decline had reached a length of 700 metres from the portal at the end of the June Quarter.
The target length of 960m was reached in August 2006. The initial access decline is complete and
extension of this decline to access lower levels of the ore body is progressing through normal strong
granodiorite rock in good mining conditions.

The first ore will be mined from a horizontal drive in the ore body commencing approximately 110
metres below surface. Ore will then be stockpiled and transported to the processing plant to commence
gold production Several levels will then be excavated in the ore body so that full rate ore extraction
(stoping) can be achieved. o

Cash operating costs for the Warrior mine are estimated at A$380 per ounce of gold-recovered.

During late May and early June the Sons of Freedom (ES) structure was obliquely mtersected 1 the
decline as predicted. The long exposure of the vein for some 50 metres, along the side and across the
face of the Decline, has yielded valuable information on its gold content and potential for mining.
Channel sampling of the ES lode at 496m down the Decline returned 1.1 metres true width at 40.5 g/t
Aun, including 0.4 metres true width at 101 g/t Au. At 509m down the Decline, channel sampling
returned 0.8 metre true width at 39.9 gft Au. A separate channel sample of quartz and sulphide vein at
the same location returned 0.2 metres true width at 362 g/t Au (11.6 ounces per lonne), equivalent to
72 grams per tonne over one metre width.

The Sons of Freedom structure is not yet part of our mining plan at Warrior and therefore adrilling
program is planned to access the extent of the intersected vein with the aim of expanding gold
production above the initial planned 40,000 ounces per annum.

Warrior Gold Resource

The Warrior mine will initially access into the eastern side of the Warrior gold deposits east-west
strike line. The deposit has an overall length of 2 kilometres and has been tested to a depth of 200
metres. The overall Inferred Mineral Resource for Warrior deposit is 1.9 million tonnes @ 14 g/t Au
containing 840,000 ounces of gold (rounded to 2 significant figures) (sec Table 8 on Page 59 of the
Report on the Inferred Mineral Resources for the Charters Towers Gold Project May 2005). Within
the overall resource, head grades and widths, of the specific mining areas are expected to vary.
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Citigold has been expanding the number of personnel at the mine site and reducing its corporate
staffing, The Company has been very successful a securing experienced mining personnel for its
underground operation in a very competitive marketplace.

Current overall personnel numbers total 52 and are growing as gold praduction approaches.
Equipment

The mining plant and mobile machinery fleet at Charters Towers is graduatly being increased and
upgraded.

Gold Process Plant — Work is essentially complete on the Black Jack process plant which is ready for
re-commissioning following a full plant inventory, detailed condition report, and completion of a
scope of works, cost estimates and a budget. Calder Projects coordinated the refurbishment. The gold
extraction plamt is an industry standard carbon-in-leach (CIL) plant. The stockpiled ore, comprising the
large blasted rock from underground, wilt be crushed to less than 12mm, conveyed to the grinding mill
where water and lime are added and the ore reduced in size to very fine sand {(0.1mm). The slurry is
then pumped into a series of large tanks where more chemicals are added to dissolve the gold. Then
carbon 1s added to the tanks, to absorb and concentrate the gold, and later the gold is stripped off the
carbon by another chemical, electroplated and smelted into gold ‘dore’ bars. The ‘dore’, that may
average around 50% gold, is shipped by security transport to a specialist gold refiner to be made into
the pure gold bars that can be readily sold on the international market. The capacity of the plant will
only be partially required for Warrior and is capable of handling the second mine, Sunburst, when it is
developed next.

Underground Blast-hole Drill Rigs — A new Atlas Copco Rocket Boomer M2D twin-boom
development drill (Jumbo), and a second near new machine, have been operating and contributing to
the acceleration of the decline. The Jumbos are principally powered by efficient grid electric power
rather than diesel fuel. An additional specialist blast- hole drill rig has been sourced, which will be used
for stoping {mining ofthe gold ore).

Underground Haul trucks - Citigold has recently taken delivery of a Caterpillar AD40 low profile
underground haulage truck and a second AD40 is being sourced. These trucks have a capacity of 40
tonnes each which will significantly improve haulage times and subsequently lead to reduced costs.
Other haulage trucks i the fleet include three with 20 tonne capacity.

In addition the fleet includes several Load Haul Dump (LHD) units for moving the blasted rock from
the rock face into the haul trucks that take the ore and waste to the surface. Other ancillary equipment
includes road graders, multipurpose tool vehicles to assist with installing underground services ete. A
workshop is located on site for all routine maintenance and highly technical repairs are outsourced to
local engineering firms.

The equipment flect is approaching the full production requirement.

SUNBURST GOLD MINE

Planning has commenced for the start of access ways and ventilation into the Sunburst gold mine,
located at the eastern end of Charters Towers city. The Sunburst structure runs for some two
kilometres east-west and dips to the north at about 45 degrees. It includes the known Queen, Sunburst
and Golden Gate ore bodies previously mined prior to 1920. Citigold plans to mine drilled extensions
of the structure outside of previous workings.
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Sunburst was originally scheduled to produce 60,000 ounces per year. Curtrent planning has increased
this to 80,000 ounces per year based on developing two mining areas simultaneously.,

Cash operating costs for the Sunburst mine are estimated at A$310 per oz of gold recovered.
BRILLIANT GOLD REEF PROJECT (BGRP)

In 2001, a separate sublease was created over part of the central mining tenements, called the Brilliant
Gold Reef Project. The Project was established as a joint venture to undertake exploration and gold
production and allowed investors to ‘farm-in’. Gold Projects Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Citigold, retains about 97% of the units. The BGRP is a managed investment scheme controlled by a
Responsible Entity for all investors. Funds raised were fully expended in the completion of 3,927
metres of drilling. A further public offer to raise the balance of the funds did not proceed, as the
Australian Taxation Office would not issue a further Product Ruling to ensure tax deductibility of the
investment. Citigold is currently maintaining the Project and all the associated costs. The Company is
considering various ways to optimise the structute of the BGRP in order to advance the project, and to
ensure the most reasonable outcome is achieved for all parties.

EXPLORATION
Exploration Strategy

Citigold’s exploration strategy is focused around and adjacent to its mining operations at Charters
Towers. This is “brownfields” exploration, exploring in and around known mineralised areas, rather
than exploring “greenfields™ or unknown areas. The company helds over 200 square kilometers of
exploration tenements covering approximately 80 prospects that have potential for economic
mineralisation. These prospects have either retumed significant gold values in surface rock chip
samples (above 5 grams of gold per tonne), or have old workings on them from which Queensland
State government records indicate significant production (more than 500 ounces of gold).

Exploration to date has yielded the currently defined 10 million ounce gold mineral resource.

Citigold’s exploration and studies to date have led to the conclusion that the overall Charters Towers
goldfield, currently held by Citigold, has the potential to contain up to 50 million ounces in gold
mineral resources. This conclusion is well founded on the facts that the field has already yielded
6.6 million ounces of gold, that Citigold has already defined an additional 10 million ounces of mineral
resources from a part of the goldfield down to 1200 metres depth, and that the structures containing the
mineralization probably extend © 3,000 metres depth. Significant mining to date has generally only
been to 700 metres deep. This makes the area a 16 million ounce field down to 1200m depth, and there
are at least four additional major parallel structures that have been mapped, are mineralised and have
been previously partly mined, that remain unexplored.

This strategy has lead Citigold to start acquiring its own sophisticated and modern diamond drilling
fleet. The building of this fleet commenced with the recent acquisition ofa new computerized Atlas-
Copco Diamec US APC drill rig to undertake diamond-core drilling at Charters Towers. The U8 rig is
computer controlled and a low-noise electro-hydraulic rig suitable for surface and underground drilling

powered by efficient local electric grid power. The rig is capable of drilling NQ (48mm diameter)
cores to 1,500 metres vertical depth. This rig will be used to expand existing reserves ahead of mining
and increase the overall gold resources.
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own drill rigs is so that we can carry out this work on our time schedule in a cost efficient manner. The
company has budgeted an intense drilling program and it made economic sense to own the drill rigs.

This coming year we expect to acquire another two diamond drill rigs.
Exploration Activities
Geological Mapping

Detailed geological mapping was conducted during the year on 12 Exploration Permits surrounding
Charters Towers, as tabled below:

Exploration Prospect Name Location

Permit Number

EPM 8563 Scorbre Covers the northern part of
Charters Towers city,

EPM 8564 Farrenden 1.5 km west of the Warrior
Mine

EPM 10593 Santiago South 1km east of processing plant

EPM 11067 Cumberland 2.5km SE of processing plant

EPM 11658 GSQ 256698 5 km Se of processing plant

EPM 13106 GSQ 183687, Golden Spur, 3km south of processing plant

GSQ197695 extensions

EPM 13182 Millchester 3km east of Charters Towers

EPM 13453 GSQ 229700 S5km SE of processing plant

EPM 13931 Mt Pleasant, GSQ 142612 10km SSW of processing plant

EPM 13932 Hill 300 7km NNW of Charters Towers

EPM 14541 GS8Q 171721, Black Jack Footwall | 1 km west of processing plant

EPM 15091 7 prospects 9 kilometres southwest of the
processing plant.

The processing plant is at the Black Jack mine site, 9km southwest of the centre of Charters Towers.
Sampling and Assaying

During the year, Citigold analysed 307 rock chip samples, 8 soil samples, 8 stream sediment samples
and 65 rock fice samples, The samples were essayed by independent laboratory SGS.

Significant assays have been released to the ASX in previous Quarterly Activities reports and are on
Citigold’s web site.

Drilling

Data from 31 drill holes previously drilled by Normandy Mining Ltd in the 1990s on ground now
covered by Citigold’s EPM13932 were located in a literature search of previous work. This area is
outside the central historic goldfield where the majority of the gold was produced. Weakly anomalous
gold was identified in six of these drill holes on EPM13932. This Exploration Permit is centred 12 km
west of Charters Towers and extends for 20km in a north-south direction. The drill hole collar
locations were shown in the June Quarter Activities report.

Citigold plans to commence a major new drilling programme in calendar 2006.
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Safety and Health Performance -

The Fatal Injury Frequency Rate (FIFR) (fatalities per million hours worked) for the 2006 financial
year is zero. In the 13 years that the Company has been in operation, there have been no work-related
fatalities in our operations and no injuries or illnesses from which employees have not made a full
recovery. In 2006, there were no serious incidents, Lost Time or Disabling Injuries reported. The Lost
Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) per million hours worked reduced from 32 in 2002 to zero in
2003 and remains zero this year. The Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR), introduced in 2002
under the NOSA Five Star risk management system, is zero. The DIFR is also calculated per million
hours worked, but is a better measure of injury statistics as it includes injuries where no time is iost.

Key Performance Year andad Year ended Year ended June | Year ended June
Indicator June 30 2003 June 30 2004 30 2005 30 2006
FIFR 0 0 0 0
| LTIFR i 0 0 [i]
DIFR 0 0 0 0

As an indication of our commitment to health and safety, Citigold’s Chief Operating Officer, Chris
Towsey, has been appointed as Chairman of the Health and Safety Task Force of the Australasian
Institute of Mining & Metallurgy.

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY

The Company had no reportable environmental incidents during 2006. The Board, management and
staff of Citigold fully support a formal environmental policy which states that:

‘Citigold Corporation is committed to balancing the protection of the natural environment with
the need for economic growth. Application of technically-proven and economically feasible
environmental protection measures will be exercised throughout exploration, development,
mining, processing and decommissioning activities to meet the requirements of legislation as a
minimum.’

Citigold’s environmental practices are monitored by the Queensland Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the Department of Mines and Energy. Citigold operates under approved Environmental

Authonties issued by the EPA and in compliance with our Plan of Operations submitied to the agency.
COMMUNITY

The Company continues to support local community and charity groups with donations of both
personnel time and money, continuing its association with local community activities including
schools, sports, Country Music Festival and rodeos.
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Your directors present their report together with the financial report of Citigold Corporation Limited and the
consolidated financial report of the consolidated entity for the year ended 30th June 2008 and the auditor's

report therein.

1. DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Cltigold Corporation Limited during the whole of the financial year and
up to the date of this report: J J Foley, M J Lynch, and P B Blood.

Name and

-

. Age  Experience Special
qualifications ? Rgsponsiblfities
J J Foley 69 Non-executive Chairman for 12.5 years, Deputy Non-axecutive
BD, LLB, Chairman B months. Graduating in law from the Chairman of Audit
BL {Dub) University of Sydney in 1969, Mr Foley was admitted to and Finance,
Appointed practise as a barrister in New South Wates in 1971, He Remuneration and
02/07/1993 was called to the Irish Bar in 1989 and admitted as a Health, Safety and

Member of the Monourable Soclety of Kings' Inns in Environment

Dublin. Mr Foley has over 30 years' experlence In the committeas.

gold mining industry, has been a guest speaker at the

World Gold Council in New York and is a past Director

of the Austratian Gold Council.
M J Lynch 50 Managing Director for 13 years. Former director of Managing Director
FAICD several companies involved in the mining industry Mr Member of Health,
Appointed Lynch has been actively involved in gold exploration Safety and
02/07/1893 and mining as an employee, consultant and director Environment

since 1979, in both private and public companies. committee.

Hands-on experience in mine management and mining

tenure administration in Queensland including leading

the team that developed the GoldTec Mining System in

2001, Mr Lynch is a Director of the Queensland

Resources Council and a Fellow of the Australian

Institute of Company Directors.
P B Blood 67 Nen-exacutive Director for 2 years. Former Professor of Member of Audit
PhD, BSc Agr, Finance — School of Business, Bond University Qid. Dr and Finance,
DIC Blood has particular skills in the areas of finance and Remuneration and
Appointed administration. He is a Global investment Consuitant Health, Safety and
26/05/2004 with qualifications In Agriculture (BSc Agr), DIC Environment

Company Secratary

{imperia! Collage Science & Technology UK} and a PhD
from the University of London. Having worked for the
World Bank, Asian Davelopment Bank, United Nations
Development Program and other multilateral
organizations in many countries, his distinguished
career includes being a Marshall Scholar (London),
Fulbtight Senior Fellow (USA) & Commeodity Trading
Advisor {USA).

committees.

Mr Matthew B Martin was appointed to the positlon of Company Secratary on 12 April 2008. Mr Marlin has
worked in various roles as part of several global teams, including internationat banking capital raisings and

accrued skills in most aspects of corporate finance and accounting. He has sirong skills in systems compliance,
multinational financial statements, forecasting, reperting and analysis. In his previcus employment he acted as
Company Secretary for client companies,
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Meetings of Directors

The number of directors’ meetings {ncluding board committees) held and the number of meelings attended by
each director during the year ended 30 June 2006 were:

Board Audit & Health, Safety & | Remuneration
Meeotings Finance Environment **
No. of meatings held 10 2 - g
No. of meetings attended by:
J J Foley 10 2 - e
M J Lynch 10 * - *
P B Blood g9 2 e

* Not a member of the refevent committee
™ Health, Safely and Environment issues are discussed and mine reports considered by Directors at each Board mesting.
*** Remunerafion issues are considerad and discussad by the Directors at Board mestings through out the year, as raquired.

Directors’ interests

The relevant interest of each director In the shares and options issued by the companies within the
consolidated entity and other related bodias corporate, as notified by the directors to the Australian Stock
Exchange in accordance with 205G (1) of the Corperations Act, at the date of this report is detailed in the
following table.

Director Ordinary shares Options
J J Foley 4,493,418 Nil
M J Lynch 86,774,613 Nil
P B Blood NIl Ni
2, PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year the principal centinuing activities of the consolidated entity consisted of exploration and
davelopment of the Charters Towers goldfield. There has been no significant change in the nature of these
activities during the year.

3. DIVIDENDS - CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED

No amount has been paid or declared by way of dividend by the Company during the year. The directors do not
recommend a dividend at this time,

4. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes in the slate of affairs on the consclidated entity during the financial year were as follows:

(a) An Increase in ordinary shares in the Company from 458,293,482 to 566,527,749 as a result of:

- Placement of ordinary shares @ 10 cents 24,202,876
- Placemeant of ordinary shares @ 11 cents 13,430,000
- Placement of ordinary shares @ 15 cents 22,582,029
- Placement of ordinary sharas @ 16 cents 16,300,000
- Share Purchase Plan allotment @ 12.5 cents 15,133,284
- Share Purchase Plan ailloiment @ 15 cents 13,482,880
- Options exercised @ 15 cants 3,502,498

Net cash received was used to continue the exploration and development activities of the Company.
See Note 18 of the Financial Statements.
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[(s)] Revaluation of assets

The Non Current Assets of Citigold Corporation were reviewed by independent consulting mining
engineers. The Property Plant & Equipment of the Company was valued as at 30 June 2006. The value
of the mining tenements has now been upgraded resulting in an Increase in the overall value of the
Charters Towers Gold Project to $155 miliion.

5. POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS

The lean sacured with a fixed and floating charge over Cltigold Corporation and Its subsidiaries has been pald In
full. See Note 24 1o the Financlal Statements.

6. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A review of the consolidated entity’s operations during the year and the results of these operations are disclosed
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

7. LIKELY DEVEL.OPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity are:

(a} the continuation of exploration activity aimed at increasing resources and reserves,
(b} a increase in mining activity and the commencement of gold production later in calendar 20086.

Additional comments on expected results are included in the review of operations.
8. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

During the financial year the Company paid premiums to insure all Directors and Officers of the Company
against claims brought against the Individual while performing services for the Company and against expenses
relating thereto, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the Company. Under the terms
and conditions of the insurance contract, the nature of liabilities insured against and the premium paid cannot be
disclosed.

The Company has not ctherwise, save as enshrined in the Company's constitution, during or since the eng of
the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has been an officer of the Company:

(a) indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability, including costs and
expenses in succassfully defending legal proceedings; or
(b} paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against a liability from the costs or

expenses to defend legal proceedings.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS
Entitles in the consolidated entity are subject to significant environmantal régulation in respect to its exploration
and mining activities in goid.

The organisation has developed criteria to determine areas of ‘particular’ or *significant’ importance, with regard
to environmental performance. These are graded 1 to 4 in terms of priority.

Level 1 incident major non compliance with regulatory requirements resutting in potential polilical outcry and
significant environmental damage of both a long and short term nature.

Level 2 incident significant non compliance resulting in regulatory action, however, environmental damage is
only of a short term nature.

Lavel 3 incident minor non compliance - na fine Is imposed, however, regulatory authority is notified.

Lavei 4 incldent non compliance with internal policies and procedures. The incident is contained on site.
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9. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS (cont.)

In the last year the following incidents have cccurred.

Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4

Incidents - - - -

The Company has an internal reporting and monitoring system with regard to environmental management on
the site. The Company employs an environmental officer to monitor all water quality, noise and alr quality
issuaes as well as liaise with the community on actlvities that may impact on the local area.

10. AUDIT/NON-AUDIT SERVICES AND AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The fees pald or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company are set out in Note 4 of the
Financial Statements.

Ouring the year Nexia Court & Co, the Company's auditer, has performed certain other services in addition to
their statlutory duties. The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor
and is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the year by the auditor Is eompatible with,
and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act.

1. REMURERATION REPORT

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two non-executive directors, advises the Board on remuneration
policies and practices generally. The Committee can make recommendations on remuneration packages and
other terms of employment for executive directors, nonexecutive directors and senior executives.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment are reviewed by the Committee when necessary having
regard to performance, relevant comparative information and independent expert advice. As well as a base
salary, remuneration packages Include superannuation and use of motor vehicles.

Remuneration packages are set at levels that are intended to attract and retain executives capable o managing
the consolidated entity’s operations.

Remuneration and terms of employment for the Managing Director are formalised in an employment agreement.
Except for the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer, Mr Mark Lynch, all executives are permanent
employees of the Company. Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Managing Director are
formalised in an employment agreement. This agreament is for a term of 8 years, commancing January 1 2003
and terminating on December 31 2008. The Company may terminate upon 3 months notice. In the event the
termination Is by reason of circumstances that the Company cannot fully utilise the services of the Managing
Director, the Managing Director is entitled to payment of a cash amount equal to three years of employment. No
such payment is to occur if the termination is due to a substantial breach of the agreement's terms and
conditions and the Company has proven such breach.

The Board, within the maximum amount approved by shareholders from time to time, determines ramuneration
of nonexecutive directors. The fees have been determined by the Board having regard to industry practice and
the need to obtain appropriately qualified persons. Non-executive directors are also entitled to statutory
superannuation.

Limited and key management personnel of the Company and the consolidated entities are set out in the
following tables.
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Direcu[:rs
J ) Foley "
. . 35,000 - 16,608 3,150 150,000 - 204,758
Non-executive Chairman
: ;
MJ Lynch® 233,000 . 983 20,970 30,500 - 285,453
Managing Director
Dr 'P B B]ood. _ 30,000 } _ _ - - 30,000
Non-executive Director
Other Key Management Personnel
R J Shand’ .
Company Secretary 75,990 39,000 3,063 6,178 - - 124,231
C A ) Towsey -
Chief Operating Officer 123,595 - 106,904 19,977 49,568 - 204,044
G Foord o 55,169 - 2655 10030 41,486 - 109,349
General Manager Engineering
JF Lynch 13
Site Senior Executive 125,000 ) - 11250 - - 136,250
R ) Morrison 115,350 - 2184 10149 13,996 - 141,679
Exploration Manager
M B Martin?
Corporate accountants 46,228 - - 5,043 - - 51,271
Company Secretary
839,332 39,000 36,397 86,756 285,550 - 1,287,035

! During the vear ended 30 June 2006 M Lynch was based in the U A E.

2 R J Shand resigned as Company Secretary on 12 April 2006,

3 M B Martin was appointed Company Secretary on 12 Aprit 2006 before that he was emploved as Corporaie Accountant.
Amaounis received and paid in both the above named positions are included in the amounts above.

Payments to speclfied Directors and Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 June 2005

GRAL ety
o

i

Directors

}iFoley 33,000 - 2169 2970 150,000 - 188,139
Non-executive Chairman

MJLynch 233,000 - - 20,970 - - 253970
Managing Director

Dr rP B Blood_ ' 30,000 } _ 2,700 - - 32,700
Non-executive Director

Other Key Management Personnel

R JC.S*"‘“" 77,304 S 1992 6957 ; ; 86,253

"ompany Secretary

C Al Towscy - .
Chief Operating Officer 106,125 - 7,190 14,013 56,890 - 184,220

G Foord o 56,442 - 7,190 38,477 37,081 - 139,190
Generel Manager Engineering

J F Lynch
Site Senior Executive 126,767 - 7,214 11,120 - - 145,104

R ] Morrison ‘ 105,654 - - 8,197 11,363 - 125214
Exploration Manager

M Desai
fnternational Chief Operaiing 143,708 - - - - - 143,708
Officer

812,000 - 25735 105406 255,334 - 1,208,495
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No share based compensation was granted to any directors or other Key managernent personnal of the
Company and the consolidated entity as part of their remuneration during the period ending 30 June 2006.

12, LOANS TO DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

No loans were granted to any directors or other key management personne! of the Company and the group
during the period ending 30 June 2006.

Auditor's indapendencs declaration undsr Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To the Dirgctors of Citigeld Gorporation Limited

| deciare that, o the Dest of my knowlsdge and beflel, in relation ko the sudi! of the fnancial yaar ended 30 June 2006 her hava
buen:

*  No contravantion of the auditor independence raquirements a5 sel out in the Comoralions Act 2001 In refation to the
audit; and

*  No confraventions of any appliceble code of professional conduct i relafion to the audt,

Hexia Court 8.Co Etap! ogars
Charfarsd Acoountants I )

Sydney

30 Seplomber 2008

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors

G

J J Foley M J Lynch
Chairman Director

30 Septembear, 2006
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The directors’ cbjective is to increase shareholder value within an appropriate framework which protects the
rights and enhances the interests of shareholders and ensures the consolidated entity is properly managad.

The Board supports the Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations
published by the Australian Stock Exchange {'ASX') Corporate Governance Council in March 2003. The Beard
has reviewed the recommendations and in many cases, the Company has in place policies and practices that
are generally consistent with those set out in the recommendations. In the limited circumstances where the
Company's corporate governance practices do not corretate with the recommendations, the Company does not
consider that the practices are appropriate for the Company due to the size of the Company or its Board. The
following is structured with reference 1o the 10 principles contained in the ASX Corporate Governance Councif's
publication.

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for the management and oversight
Principle 2: Structure the Board to add value

Principal 3: Promote ethical and responsible decision making
Principal 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporiing

Principal 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure

Principal 6: Respect the rights of shareholders

Pringipal 7: Recognise and manage risk

Principal 8: Encourage enhanced performance

Principle & Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Principle 10:  Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders.
A. Board Composition

The Board Is comprised of three {3) Diractors, being 2 non-executive directors and one executive director, Mr M
J Lynch. A majority of the Board Is non-executlve directors, including the Chalrman. All non-executive directors
are regarded as independent by the company.

Entittes connected with Mr J J Foley had business dealings with the consolidated entity during the year, as
described in the diractors’ report above. Mr J J Foley declared his interests In those dealings to the Company
and took no part In decisions relating to them. These dealings were not considered to be of an amount or nature

that would affect Mr Foley's independent judgrnent.

Entities connected with Mr M J Lynch had business dealings with entities in the consolidated entity during the
year. Mr M J Lynch declared his interests in those dealings to the Gmpany and took no part in decisions
relating to them.

The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position of each Director who is in office at the date of the
annual report, their meeting attendances and their term of office are detailed in the Directors’ Repori. Each
director brings relevant complementary skills and experience to the Board covering the areas of legal, finance
and operations.

As the Board acts on behalf of and is accountable to shareholders, the Board seeks to identify the expectations

of shareholders, as well as other regulatory and ethical expectations and obligations. The Board is responsible

for:

. approval of corporate strategles and the annual budget

. rmornitoring financial performance including approval of the annual and halfyear financial reports and
liaison with the Company's auditors . T -
appointment of, and assessment of the performance of the Managing Director
monitoring managerial performance, and

. ensuring the significant risks facing the consolidated entity have been identified and appropriate and
adequate controf, monitoring and reporting mechanisms are in place.

The Company has a small Board and management team which enables roles and functions 1o be flexible to
meset specific requirements where necessary. The responsibility for the operations of the consolidated entity is
delegated by the Board to the Managing Director and the executive team. The Board assures that this team is
adequately qualified and experienced to discharge their responsibilities.
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The Board has established a number of committees to assist the execution of its duties. Each committee has its
own autonoimy with authority delegated to it by the Board and the manner in which the committee Is to operate.

Current committees of the Board are:

. the audit & finance commiltee
. the remuneration committee
. the health, safety and environment committee

The Board reviews at approptiate times its performance and the performance of the Board committees. Such
reviews entail a vigorous and frank discussion outside the normail program of Board meetings.

The Company's Constifution specifies that all directors {with the exception of the Managing Director) musi, by
roiation, retire from office at each Annuat General Meeting {AGM) such that at least one director stands for
elaction at each AGM. Where eligible, a director may stand for re-election.

Audit & Finance Committee

The audit & finance committee consists of the following non-executive directors: JJ Feley (Chairman) and PB
Blood

The main respensibilities of the audit & finance committee are to:

) review and report to the Board on the annual report, the annual and half-year financial reports and all
other financial information published by the company or released to the market
. assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal controi environment covering

(@) effectiveness and efficlency of operations
(b} reliability of financiaf reporting
{c) compliance with applicable laws and regulations
. determine the scope of the internal control checks and ensure they are coordinated with the external
auditors.
. recommend to the Board the appointment, removal and remuneration of the external auditors, review the
terms of thelr engagement, and the scope and quality of the audit.

The Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer conflrm that the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2006 represent a true and fair view of Citlgold’s financial posilion and performance and that the reports
conform with relevant accounting standards.

in fulfilllng its responsibilities, the audit & finance committee recelves regular reports from and meets with
_managemenl and the external auditors. The external auditors have a clear line of direct communication at any
time to either the Chairman of the audit committee or the Chairman of the Board. The Auditor also atiends the
Annual General Meeting.

The audit & finance committee has authority, within the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any information it
requires from any employeea or external party.

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

The health, safety & environment committee conslists of the following executive and non-executive directors: JJ
Foley, PB-Blood and MJ Lynch.

The consolidated entity recognises the importance of environmental and occupational health and safety {OHAS)
issues and is committed to the highest levels of performance. To help meet this objective an Environmental,
Health and Safety Management System (EHSMS) has been established by mine management. The EHSMS is
a tool that allows the systematic identification of environmental and OH&S issues and ensures they are
managed in a structured manner,

Through the EHSMS, the consolidated entity aims to:

comply with all relevant legisiation
continually assess and improve the impact of its operations on the environment

encourage employeas to actively participate in the management of envircnmenta! and OHA&S issues, and
use energy and other resources efficiently.

* & @

Information on compliance with significant environmental regulations is set out in the directors' report.
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Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee consists of the following non-executive directors: JJ Foley and PB Blood.

The remuneration committee advises the Board on remuneration policies and practices generally and can make
recommendations on remuneration packages and other terms of employment for directors and senior
executives. Independent advice and industry information may be obtalned from time to time on the
appropriateness of remuneration packages.

Remuneration levels are set at levels that are intended to attract and retain appropriately qualified and
experienced directors and senior executives capable of managing the consolidated entity's operations.
Remuneration of non-executive directors is determined by the Board within the maximum amount approved by
the shareholders from time to time. Remuneration packages do no! have guaranteed based or performance
hased components.

There I1s no scheme to provide retiremeni benefits, other than statutory superannuation, to non-executive
directors.

The consolidated entity has not formed a nomination committee because there are only 3 Directors. The Board
as a whole is able to efficiently address the issue of board competencies.

Further Information on the remuneration paid to all directors” and key management personne! is set out In the
Remuneration Report and note 28 to the financial statements.

C. Risk Managaement

Due to the size of the Board, a separate risk management committee has not been established. The Board
believes that it is important for all Board members to take a proactive role to the company's risk management
and Internal compliance and control procedures. The Board monitors the financial and operational aspects of
the company’s activities and considers the advice of the external auditor and other external advisors.

Risk Profile

Citigold operates field exploration for gold in Queensland and owns two separate underground mining
operations, the Warrior Gold Mine and the Central Decline. It also owns and operates a 340,000 tonne
pear year gold processing plant. The risk profile Is typical of the mining industry, and is heavlly regulated
by the Queensland State Government. It is an ASX listed company, with a market capitalisation of
approximately $232 milllon at a share price of 40 cents. Citigold has been depandeni on capital raising
by sale of shares to investors since its inception in 1893. Once gold production commences from the
Warrior Gold Mine Citigeld's cash flows will be dependent on the amount of gold produced, production
costs, and the internationat price of gold.

Financial Risks

Financial risks are identified and managed by the Board with tasks delegated to the Managing Director
and senior executives. Budgets, variances, cost reports, commodity prices, price trends and cash flow
projections are analysed by management and submitted to the Board for review at Board meetings.
Cash flows are submitted to ASX each Quarter and full financial reports submitted twice per year to the
ASX.

Operational Risks

Operational risks are reviewed yearly by the NOSA Five Star Integrated Risk Management System.
This is a commercial product originally produced by the National Occupational Safety Assoclation,
operated by Citigold, with the results audited annually by external consultants. This system identifies all
aspects of risks of the operation, particularly those related to safety, health, environment and social
impact. Citigold's operalions are subject to regulation and reguiar inspection and monitoring by the
Queensland State Government Department of Mines and Energy and the Environmental Protection
Authority.
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No formal internal audit is conducted, as the smail number of employees (less than 60) allows the
normal weekly and monthly monitoring of budgets, variances, costs and finances to adequately manage
financlal and before operational risk.

D. Independent Professional Advice

Directors and Board committees have the right, in connection with their duties and responsibilities, to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expensa. Prior consent by the full Board Is required, but this
will not be unreasonably withha!d.

E. Shareholder communication
Information is communicated to shareholders through:

The annual report which is distributed to all shareholders

The half-yearly repert which is made available by way of an ASX release

The Annual General Meeting

ASX releases in accordance with the consolidated entity’s continuous disclosure obligations
Information avallable on the Company's website at www.citigold.com

Shareholders are invited to advise the Company of thelr email addresses. ASX announcements, once released,
are then able to be emailed directly to the shareholder.

F. Disclosure and Ethical Standards

All directors, executives and staff of the consolidated entity are made aware of the ASX's continuous disclosure
requirements and operate in an envitonment where emphasis is placed on {ull and appropriate disclosure to the
market. All directors, executives and staff of the consolidated entity are required to abide by all legal
requirements, the Listing Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange, the Corporations Act with the regard to
trading in the Company's securities and appropriate standards of ethical conduct with regard to the operation of
the consolidated entity. -

A Code of Conduct (the Code) as adopted by the Board sets out ethical standards expected of all directors,
executives and employees. The Code is reviewed and updated as necessary to generally reflect industry
standards of integrity and professionalism. The Code covers:

* professional conduct * customer and supplier relations
* other employees « compliance with laws and regulations
* conflicts of intarest * confidential information
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Ré.vgnue - - - -
Other income 2 324,362 67812 458,850 510,864
Personnel Expenses (908,320) (788,902) (241,937) (355,862)
Depreciation (940,771) {831,531) {936,862) (828,497)
Finance costs (981,341) (850,037) {977,252) (840,887)
Consulting expense (107,902) (248,545) {107,354) (263,905)
Loss on sale of non-carrent assets - (2,350,273) - -
Other expenses 3 (1,648,897) (907,623) (1,238377) (708,616)
f;’;g:';(:“‘“) before income tax (4262869)  (5909.000) (3.042972)  (2,486,903)
Income tax expense - - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax from ,

s ,
operations (4,262,869) (5,909,099} (3,042.972)  (2,486,903)
.Proﬁt/(_Loss) attributable to minority (54) @31 . .
mterest
Profit/(Loss) attributable to ,
members of the parent entity (4,262,815) (5,908,668) (3,042972)  (2,486,903)
Earnings per share:

Basic (cents per share) 6 (0.82)y cents  (1.32) cents
Diluted {cents per share) 6 {0.80) cents  (1.28) cents

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 24 o 44.
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2006

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Reccivables

Inventories

Investments (at fair vatue)
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables

Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Habilities

Net assets

Equity

Issued capital

Rescrves

Accumulated Losses
Parent entity interest
Minority interest:

Total equity

16
13

i
12

14
15
17

17

18
20
19

-

]

2
T

2,185,456
1,477 381

485,570
2,282 000
6,430,407

155,796,726

509257
156,305,983
162,736,390

1,496,049
7,533,636

264,641
9,294,326

972,955
522,738
1,495,693
10,790,020
151,946,370

87,521,310
105,753,466
(41,397 830)
151 876,946
69.424
151,946,370

Notes to the financial statements arc includedon pages 24 o 44.
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631,511
2,324,863
438,805

3,395,179

113,924,328

509,257
114,433,585
117,828,764

1,596,815
7,830,084

178,388
9,605,287

1,684,512
564,913
2,249,425
11,854,712
105,974,052

73.539.490
69,384,254
(37,019,170)
105,904,573
69,479
105,974,052

2,106,934
2,378 833

485,570
2,282,000
7,253,337

150,746,482

11,102,781
161,849,263
169,102,600

1,485 294
7,533 636

264,641
9,283,571

972,955
522738
1,495,693
10,779,264
158,323,335

87,521,310
105,182,037
(34,380,011)
158,323,335

158,323,335

573,586
3,145,669
438,805

4,158,060

108,541,217

11,102,781
119,643,998
123,802,058

2,724,420
7,830,084
178,388
10,732,892

1,684,512
564,913
2,249,425
12,982,318
110,819,740

73,539,490
68,812,824
(31,532,573)
110,819,740

110,819,740
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Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Proﬁtl(Loss) for the period

Total recognised income and
expense for the period
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Total equity opening balance
(Loss)/Profit for the period
Reserve movement

Contributions of equity, net
of transaction costs

Total equity closing balance

19 {4,262.869)

(4.262.815)
(54)

105,904,572
(4,262 815)
20 36,369,212

13,981,820

151,946,370

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 24 to 44,

(5,909 099)

(5.908,668)
@31

49,760,355
(5,908,668)

56,788,000
5,166,186

105,974,052

G, 042 972)

(3,042,972)

110,819,740
(3,042,972)
36,369,212

13,981,820
158,323,335

(2,486,903}

(2.486,903)

51,352,458
(2,486,903)

56,788,000
5,166,186

110,819,740
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CORSMOLIGAaca Casn 110w stateinent
for the year ended 30 June 2006

U
Dy

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest and other costs of finance paid
[ncome tax paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on sale of investinent securities

Interest received

Payment for property, plant and
equipment

Development costs paid

Amounts advanced to related parties
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Procecds from issues of equity securities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrewings

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

8

5
RN

i }i\! i
ssﬁig/éﬂﬁr'f i

Ty
05|

i
i

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 24 to 44.
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1,173,849 46,867 391,391 46,827
(2,166,263) (4,761,741) (1,044 306) (1,579,665)
(1,308,464) (829.092) (1,304,375) (840.887)

(25,002) - (25,002) -
(2325880)  (5543966)  (1,982292) (2,352.869)
- 3201989 . ;

77.614 (12,727 35,557 20,856
(3.243,003) (189.418) (3237.678) (196,845)
(5,655,682} (2,470,783) {6,116,793)  (2,470,783)
- - 133,657 -
(8,821,072) 529,061 (9,185.257) (2,667,629)
13,788,070 4929228 13,788,070 4929228
645,076 - 645,076 -
(1,732,250) - (1,732,250) -
12,700,897 4929228 12,700,897 4,929,228
1,553,945 (85,677} 1,533,348 (91,270}
631,511 717,188 573,586 664,856
2,185,456 631,511 2,106,934 573,586
P23



1.  Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the
yearly financial report;

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the
Corporations Act 2001.

Statement of Compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards which include AIFRS. Compliance with
AIFRS ensures that the financial statements and notes thereto of the Company comply with [nternational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The parent entity financial statements and notes also comply with IFRS,
except where it has been elected to apply the relief provided to parent entities in respect of certain disclosure
requirements contained in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentations and Disclosure.

This is the first financial report for the company based on AIFRS and the comparatives for the year ended 30
June 2005 have been restated accordingly. There are no reconciliation adjustments from AGAAP to AIFRS
equity and profit.

Basis of conselidation

The financial report of the Citigold Corporation Group (“the consolidated entity”) includes the consotidation of
Citigold Corporation Limited and ils respective subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the parent
entity. Control exists where either parent entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial report
from the date control commences until the date control ceases. Where the Citigold Corporation Group’s interest
is less than 100 per cent, the interest aitributable to outside shareholders is reflected in minority interests. The
effects of all transactions between entities within the Citigold Corporation Group have been eliminated.

Basis of measurement
The financial report 13 drawn up on a basis of historical cost principles

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash in banks,

Comparative amounts
When the presentation or classification of items in the yearly financial report is amended, comparative amounts
shal] be reclassified unless the reclassification is impracticable.

Employee benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service lcave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured
reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee tenefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at their
nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are

measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the consolidated entity in
respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date.
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Exploration, evalnation and development expenditure
Development expenditure activities are capitalised.
txploration and cvaluation expendifure is capitalised when:

. It is expected that the expenditure will be recouped by future exploitation or sale; or
. Substantial exploration and evaluation activities have identified a mineral resource with sufficient
certainty that permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of commercially recoverable
reserves.
Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
o determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment less. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the consolidated entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-iax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates and tax laws that
have been cnacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Current tax for current and prior periods is
recognised as a liability {or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

Tax consolidation
The parent entity company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax consolidated
group under Australian taxation law. Citigold Corporation Limited is the head entity in the tax-consolidated

group.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recopnised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except for
receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash Aows arising
from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

Inventories
Inventories are vahied at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned to inventory on hand

using the first in first out method.

Leased assets

Assets held under leases which result in entities in the consolidated entity receiving substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset (finance leases) are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment or the estimated present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding finance lease obligation is included within interest bearing liabilities, The interest element is
allocated to accounting periods during the lease term to reflect a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the obligation for each accounting period.

Operating lease assets are not capitalised and rental payments are included in the Income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when entities in the consolidated entity become
obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment {including the original capital expenditure and any
subsequent capital expenditure) is depreciated to its residual value over the useful economic lives of the specific
assets concerned or the life of the mine or lease, if shorter. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment arc depreciated on a unit of production and/or straight-line basis as follows:

* Buildings — 20 years

« Plant, machinery and equipment ~ 4 1o 50 years

* Vehicles - 5 to 8 years straight-line
« Computer systemns - up to 8§ years straight-line

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as fo write off the net cost or other re-valued amount of
each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. Leasehold improvements are depreciated
over the period of the lease or estimated vseful life, whichever is the shorter, using the straight line method.

Depreciation rates and metheds shall be reviewed at feast annually and, where changed, shail be accounted for
as a change in accounting estimate. Where depreciation rates or methods are changed, the net written down
value of the asset is depreciated from the date of the change in accordance with the new depreciation rate or
method. Depreciation recognised in prior financial years shall not be changed, that is, the change in depreciation
rate or method shall be accounted for on a ‘prospective’ basis.

Provision for restoration and rehabilitation

Entities in the consolidated entity are generally required to decommission and rehabilitate mine and processing
sites at the end of their producing lives to a condition acceptable to the relevant authorities and consistent with
its environmental policies. The expected cost of any approved decommissioning or rehabilitation programme,
discounted to its net present value, is provided when the related environmental disturbance occurs, based on the
its interpretation of environmental and regulatory requirements,

Expected decommissioning and rehabilitation costs are based on the discounted value of the estimated future
cost of detailed plans prepared for each site. Where there is a change in the

expected decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is recorded against the carrying value of the
provision and any related asset, and the effect is then recognised in the Income Statement on a prospective basis
over the remaining life of the operation.

The provisions referred to above do not include any amounts related to remediation costs associated with
unforeseen circumstances. Such costs are recognised when environmental contamination as a result of oil and
chemical spills, seepage or other unforseen events gives rise to a loss which is probable and reliably estimable,
The cost of other activities to prevent and control pollution is charged to the Income Statement as incurred.

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the consolidated entity has transferred to the buyer the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Other income
Other income is recognised on a receivable basis.
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Interest Recel ved 77,615 20,945 ‘ 20,856
Equipment Hire 4,500 6,705 6,705
Government Rebates 24,260 40,162 24 260 40,121
Net Profit on sale of assets 39,987 - 39,987 -
Brilliant Gold Reef Project - expenses - C- 354,545 443,182
reimbursed

Contra Eamings - adventising 178,000 - -

TOTAL 324362 67812 458 850 510,864

3. Other Expenses

o S

R R H T A Hi m$ kAol Ak, i i
Insurance 143 568 25 155 143,568 25,155
Office administration costs 474,188 281,285 417,085 241,018
Corporate administration 603,342 288,590 377,768 224 382
Tenement charges & costs 86,273 105,223 86,273 105,223
Travel expenses 167,503 261,164 41,299 181,148
Professional fees 138,616 135,558 130,409 121473
Consumables 26,275 217 26,275 217
Loss on currency transactions 0,132 - 15,700 -
Royalty - {190,000) - (190,000)
TOTAL 1,648,897 907,192 1,238,377 708,616
4, Auditors Remuneration

b rf
it

TR i i o

L
Audit Semces
Audit and review of financial
reports — Nexia Court & Co
Other regulatory Services - Nexia
Court & Co

9,636 14,298 6,288 14,298

20,000 12,581 20,000 12,581
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"Prima facie income tax benefit
calculated at 30% (2005: 30%)})

on the {loss)/profit (1,278,861) {1,772,600) (912,892) (746,071)

Decrease ! (Increase) in income tax
benefit due to :

Temporary differences 36,728 56,193 36.728 49,957

Defarred income tax asset not
recognised 1,242,133 1,713,407 1,242,133 696,074

{income tax attributable to net loss
for year - - - -

At 30 June 2006 consolidated deferred lax assets of $17,477,342 ($16,235,209 at 30 June 2005) arising
from carried forward income tax losses calculated at a tax rate of 30% (30 June 2005 30%) have not been
recognised as an assel.

At 30 June 2006 the parent entity had deferred tax assets of $14,409,314 ($13,167,781 at 30 June 2005)
arising from carried forward income tax losses caleulated at a tax rate of 30% (30 June 2005 30%) which
have not been recognised as an asset,

The banefit of these losses will only be obtained if:
{}) the company and / or the consolidatod entity derive future assessable income is derived of a nature and
of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deduction for the losses to be realised;

{ii) the company and / or the consolidated entily continues to comply with the conditions for
deductibility imposed by tax legislation; and

(iii) future changes in tax legisiation do not adversely impact on the ufilisation of the carried
forward tax losses.

At 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2005 the consolldated entity had a nil balance on the franking
credit account.

N
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6. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The caleulation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 2006 was based in the loss atiributable to ordinary
shareholders of $4,262 815 ($5,908,668 in 2005) and weighted average niunber of ordinary shares cutstanding
during the financial year ended 30 June 2006 of 513,804,746 (458,293,482 in 2005), calculation as follows:

Profit (toss) for the period™

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 July 458,293 482 418,672,412
Eftect of shares issued in July 13,243,487 -
Effect of share purchase plan September 10,365,263 -
Effect of shares 1ssued in September 8,703,658 14,364,575
Effect of shares issued in December - 7,727,821
Effect of shares issued in January 6,052,137 683,388
Effect of share purchase plan February 4,543,478 -
Effect of shares issued in February 7,020,547 -
Effect of share purchase plan March - 6,899,380
Effect of shares issued in March 5,210,239 -
Effect of shares issued in April - 54110 -
Effect of shares issued in Janunary 318,345 -

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares used

in calculating basic earnings per share 513,804,746 458,293,482

*all attributable to ordinary sharcholders

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 2006 was based in the loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of $4,232,244 ($5,208,668 in 2005) and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year ended 30 June 2006 of 528,596,646 (471,200,481 in 2005), calculation as follows:

Profit (loss) for the period* "(4.262.815) (5,908,668)

“Weighted average-number of ordinary shares

Weighted average of ordinary shares at 30 June 513,804,746 448 349 576
Effect of options issued before 1 June not exercised by 30 June 12,066,935 12,906,999
Effect of options issued through out the vear not 2,724,901 -

exercised by 30 June

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares used in

caleulating diluted earnings per share 528,596,646 471,200,481

*all attributable to ordinary shareholders
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7. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activifies

y (4.262869)  (5909,099)  (3,042972)  (2,486,903)
Adjustiments for:

Depreciation 940,771 831,531 036,862 828,468
Interest received (77.614) (35,557)
Conversion of options 236,956 236,956
Foreign exchange losses 9,131 - 15,700 -
Net profit on sale of assets (39.987) 2,350,273 (39,987) -
([nc{ease)/ decrease in Trade and other 970,188 (2,297328) (1,185 (1,164,820)
receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories (54.492) - (54,492) 179,108
(Decrease)/ increase in trade and other - -

. 362,031 (B25,465) 400,008 -
receivables
Increase/ (decrease) in Employee (173,039) (1282)  (173,039) 54292
provisions

Net Cash provided by/ (used in)
operating activities (2,325 880) (5,620,414  (1,982.29]) (2,352,869)

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Call deposits 1,877.437 - 1.877437 -

Cash and cash equivalents in
the_cash flow statement

2,185,456 631,511 2.106,934 573,586

Bank Balances 308,019 631,511 229,497 373,586 E
|
|
|

9, Receivables

Current

Trade debtor 1,330,997 2,298 086 2,635,184 2,261,500
Trade debtor (Other) - - - 8,086
Security Bonds 22225 22225 17,934 17,934
Prepayments : 2,453 4,552 2,453 4552
Receivables (wholly owned subsidiaries) - (398.,444) 853,597

GST paid by company on acquisitions 121,706 - 121,706 -

1,477 381 2,324 863 2,378,833 3,145,669
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10. Inventories

i I
T
i

Raw materials and 485,570 431,078 485,570 431,078

consumables

Gold Nuggets - 1,127 - 1,127
485.570 438.805 485,570 438 805

11.  Plant, Property and Equipment

A
i

)

PROPERTY, P ,

Exploration, Evaluation and Development

expenditure
Costs brought forward in respect of areas
of interest: 34,715,544 32,244,760 34,715,544 32,244,760
Costs incurred in period 4,590,703 2,470,783 4,590,703 2,470,784
Less: Accumulated amortisation {1,142 988) (1,142 988) (1,142, 988) (1,142 988)
Total exploration, evaluation and 38,163,259 33,572,555 38,163 259 33,572,555

development expenditure
The ultimate recoupment of costs carried forward for exploration and evaluation expenditure 15 dependent
on the successful development and commercial exploitation or sale of the respective areas.

Mining Tenements - at independent

valuation
Independent valuation brought forward 74,439,915 17,651,915 69,432,625 12,644,625

\ Net revaluation increment 36,695,212 56,788,000 36,695,212 56,788,000
| Less: Accumulated amortisation -

Total mining tenements 111,135,127 74,439,915 106,127,837 69,432,628

Freehold Land and Buildings
- at directors' valuation

Carrying amount at beginning of year 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
Carrying amount at end of year 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
| Plant and Equipment
| Carrying amount at beginning of year 5,315,302 5,957,414 5,273,210 5,917,589
Additions during year 1,620,977 189,419 1,616,206 184,118
Less: depreciation charged in year (940,771} (831,531) (936,862) (828,497)
Carrying amount at end of year 5,995,508 5,315,302 5,952,554 5,273,210

All Property, Plant and Equipment was independently re-valued as at 30 June 2006.
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PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT CARRYING VALUES

Exploration, Evaluation and Development
expenditure at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Carrying value at 30 June

Mining Tenements at Fair Value
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Carrying value at 30 June

Freehold Land and Buildings at Directors
Valuation

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value at 30 June

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value at 30 June
Total Carrying value

Leased Plant and Machinery

39306247 34715543 39306247 34,715,543
(1,142,088)  (1,142988)  (1,142,988)  (1.142,988)
38,163,259  33,572.555 38163259 33,572,555
111,135,127 74439915 106,127,836  69.432,625
111135127 74439915 106127836 69432625
518,548 518.548 518,548 518.548
518,548 518.548 518,548 518.548
9,453,266 7,832,289 9,402,814 7,786,607
(3457,758)  (2,516987)  (3450260)  (2,513,397)
5,995,508 5,315,302 5,952,554 5,273,210

155,796,726 113924328 150,746,432 108,541,217

Entities in the consolidated entity lease production equipment under a number of finance lease agreements. At
the end of each lease the entity has the option to purchase the equipment at a beneficial price. At 30 June 2006
the net carrying amount of leased plant and Machinery was $1,173,140. The lease equipment secures lease

obligations.

Independent Valuation

The valuation was conducted by T.V. Willsteed, BEng(Hons), BA, FAusIMM, MMICA, of Terence Willsteed
& Associates Pty Limited, consulting mining engineers and independent valuers of mining assets. Mr Terence
Willsteed is a mining engineer with over 48 years experience in mining operations, mineral processing,

corporate management and consulting practice.

12. Other noncurrent assets

Sc.cur]ty dcpos1t agamst"restoratlé;\
costs lodged with the Department of
Mines and Energy

Investments in subsidiary companies
at costs

008 f
( (“\ME“ i

s

jotii? wn»mvmr i
509,257 509,257 505,304 505,304
- - 10,597,477 10,597,477
500,257 509,257 11,102,781 11,102,781
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13. Investments

i
lu!nl;j;h il

o

e

L

Current mvestments

Listed cqml;.y sccurities Available for 2.282,000 _ 2.282.000 ]
Sale — at fair value

i
f

14. Payables

'?/,/.("r{&’{é

ende fé

Current

Trade Creditor {(wholly owned 1,061,493 337,230 1,052,737 305,021
subsidiaries)

Sundry Creditors and accrued Expenses 434 556 1,259,585 32,557 1,301,014
Amounts Payable to wholly owned - - - 817,391
subsidiaries

Amounts Payable to partly owned - - - 300,994
subsidiaries

FBT Payable

1,496,049 1,596,815 1485294 2.724,420
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15. Interest Bearing Liabilities

P,

TR
i

i
i

i

T
IR
i ﬁ”ﬁ‘ﬂ

“Current

Unsecured Liabilities

L"““Efgi‘;;"“‘ﬁc" director refated 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Convertible notes 1,813,583 - 1,813,583 -
2,113,583 300,000 2,113,583 300,000
Secured Liabilities
Loans from unrelated parties 4990514 7490514 4,990,514 7.490,514
Finance Lease Liabilities 219,783 - 219,783 -
Iire Purchase Liabilities 209,756 39,570 209,756 39,570
5.420,053 7,530,084 5,420,053 7,530,084
7,533,636 7,830,084 7,533,636 7,830,084
Noa Current
Unsecured Liabilities
Convertible notes - 1,663,583 - 1,663,583
- 1,663,583 - 1.663,583
Sccured Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities 587,539 - 587,539 -
Hire Purchase Liabilities 385416 20,929 385416 20,929
20,929 - 20,929
972,955 1,684,512 972,955 1,684,512

Security Loans to unrelated parties

The unrelated party loan facility extended to the Company is secured by:

(i A first registered fixed and floating charge over all assets and undertakin gs of the company: and

(in A first registered mortgage over all mining leases and mineral development licences held by the
Company

Finance Leasc Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities of the consolidated entity are payable as follows .y

B
S s e e - *te"ss‘[hc“"l' y'car ] ] i 289,609 69’826 - 219’783
) Between 1 and 5 years 674,184 86,646 587,539
More then 5 years - - -
963,793 156,472 807322

The consolidated entity’s lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets of $1,173,140 (2005: nil). In the event
of default, the leased assets revert to the lessor.

Convertible Notes

In March 2007 note holders have the option to receive one ordinary share for every note held. Notes that are not
converted to ordinary shares will be redeemed at face value,
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Hire Purchase Liabilities
Hire Purchase liabilities of the consolidated entity are payable as follows

Il;{ll[lH:d}lﬁil}f_l,l].[lﬂ I

Less then | year 252,984 0 287 209,756
Between 1 and 5 years 457,671 75,196 385416

More then 5 years - - -

710,655 115483 595,172

The consolidated entity's lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets of $1,173,140 (2005: nil). In the event
of default, the leased assets revert to the lessor.

16. Employee Benefits

Share based payments

No share based payments are made to any employees of the consolidated entity.

17. Provisions

. ff»"é e

o gL i
Current Provisions

Employee entitlements 264,641 178,388 264,641 178,388
264,641 178,388 264,641 178,388

Non Current Provisions

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental 505,304 505,304 505,304 505,304
Enmployee entitlements 17,434 59,609 17434 59,609
522,738 564,913 522,738 564,913

Restoration, rchabilitation and environmental

The provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental work has been classified as a non-current
provision as the obligation to perform such work will only arise on the cessation of mining. The provision,
which has not been discounted to present value, is fully funded by a cash deposit of an equal or greater amount
held by the Queensland Department of Mines and Energy.

Employee Entitlements

At 30 June 2006 the consolidated entity and the Company had 40 equivalent full time employees (2005: 23)
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18. Issued Capital

Reconciliation of movement in issued capital of the parent entity
Balance at 1 July 2005 458,293,482 73,539.450

Movements in Issued Capital as follows:

Date Details Number of Issue/(buy $
shares back) Price
03/07/05 Ordinary Share Issue 5,400,000 10 cents 340,000
28/07/05 Ordinary Share Issuc 8,533,943 10 cents 853,394
24/10/05 Ordinary Share Issuc 15,133,284 12.5 cents 1,891660
09/09/05 Ordinary Share Issue 10,268,933 10 cents 1,026,893
09/09/05 Ordinary Share lssue 500,000 15 cents 75,000
11/01/06 Ordinary Share Issue 13,430,000 11 cents 1,477,300
28/02/06 Ordinary Share Issue 18,016,013 15 cents 2,702,402
28/02/06 Ordinary Share lssue 16,300,000 16 cents 2,608,000
01/03/66 Converston of Options 340,000 15 cents 51,000
17/03/06 Ordinary Share Issuc 17,549,596 15 cents 2,632.439
13/04/06 Conversion of Options 250,600 15 cents 37,500
03/05/06 Conversion of Options 383,334 15 cents 57,500
25/5/06 Conversion of Options 2,529,164 15 cenis 379,375
Capital raising costs allocated against issued (350,644)
capital
Total Movement for the year 108,634,267 13,981,820
Balance at 30 June 2006 566,927,749 87,521 310

Share options

The terms, amount and number of options are as follows:

i
N

}i\\}

é :
.

,5"%« i

f.”»iﬁ?’i‘mﬁiﬂ'»m i A : e L R R i B
Numbe cent optlcns on issug at 30 June, ea ertible to one 12,066,999 12,906,999
ordinary share
Exercise Price 15 Cents 15 Cents
Expiry date T 06-Dec-06 06-Dec-06

B Number of 15 cent options on issue at 30 June, each convertible toone 2,724,901 -
ordinary share
Exercise Price 15 Cents -
Expiry date 17-Mar-08 -
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Movement in share options
The movement in the company’s share options during the year ended 30 June 2006 were as follows:

Date Details Number of Issue/(buy b
options back) Price

09/06/05  Issuc exercise price 15 cents, expiry date 6 500,000 - -
Dec 2006

28/02/06  Issue exercise price 15 cents, expiry date 6 500,000 . -
Dec 2006

01/03/06  Conversion of options expiring & Dec 2006 (340,000) 15 cents (51.600)

17/03/06  Issue excrcise price 15 cents, expiry date 4,387,399 - -
17 Mar 2008

13/04/96  Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar (250,000) 15 cents {(37.500)
2008

03/05/06  Conversion of options expiring 6 Dec 2006 (333339) 15 cents (50,000)

03/05/06  Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar (50,000) 15 cents (7.500)
2008

25/05/06  Conversion of aptions expiring 6 Dec 2006 {1,166,666) 15 cents (175,000)

25/05/06  Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar {1.362,498) 15 cents (204,375)
2008

Fotal Movement for the year 1,884,901 (525,375)

19. Accumulated Losses

Accumulated losses at begmnmg of vear (37 019 ]70) (3 1,209,204) (3] 532 573) (29 045 67] )
Net loss for the year (4,262 815) (5,908.668) (3,042,972) (2.486,903)
Net changes in outside equity interests 54 98,701 - -

(41,397,830)  (37.019,170)  (34,380,011) (31,532573)
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20.

Reserves

b AON AT,

A

Composition;
Asset Revaluation Reserve

Capital Profits Reserve

Available for sale assets revaluation
reserve

Movements:

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at beginning of year
Revaluation increase during the year

Balance at end of year

Capital Profits Reserve
Balance at beginning of year

Balanee at end of year

Fair Value Reserve
Balance at beginning of year

Revaluation (decrease)increase during

the year
Balance at end of year

Asset Revaluation

Digpi Ji}iu))]ilwij)'uiu‘i@&bﬂ;
105,508,036  68.812,824 105508036 68,812,824
571,430 571.430 . -
(326,000) . (326.000) -
105,753,466 69384254 105,182,037 __ 68,812,824
68,812,824 12024824 68812824 12024824
36695212 56788000 36695212 56,788,000
105,508,036 68,812.824__ 105,508,036 ___ 68,812,824
571,430 571,430 - .
571,430 571,430 - -
(326,000) - (326000) ) .
(326,000) - (326,000) N

The asset revaluation reserve contains net revaluation increments and decrements arising on the

revaluation of non-current assets.

Capital Profits

Upon disposal of re-valued assets, and increments standing to the credit of the asset revaluation
reserve is transfirred to the capital profits reserve,

Fair Value Reserve
The fair value reserve includes cumulative net change in the fair value of available for sale
investments until the investment is derecognised.
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21. Commitments
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I*inance Lease Commitments

Payable:

- not later than one year 289,609 44140 289,609 44,140
- later than one year but not later than five years 674,184 22,520 674,184 22,520
Minimum lease payments 963,793 66,660 963,793 66,660
Less future finance charges (156,472) {6,160) (156.472) {(6,160)
Total lease liability 807,322 60,500 §07,322 60,500

‘The finance leases commitments are for finance leases over office equipment, motor
vehicles and portable items of plant. The leases are on normmal commercial terms and
conditions and are for terms of between one and four years.

Exploration expenditure commitments

The consolidated entity and the Company have the following discretionary
exploration expenditure commitments in respect of exptoration and mining tenements
to maintain current rights of tenure. These commitments may be reduced by
renegotiation upon rencwal of the tenements, or by relinquishment of tenure.

Payable:
- not later than one year 425000 425000 425000 425000
- later than one year but not later than five years 1,439,291 805,000 1439291 805,000

1,864,291 1,203,000 1,864,291 1,203,000

Operating lease commitments

Operating Lease Commitrments in respect of non-cancellable operating
lcases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements

Payable:
- not later than one year 252,984 38,140 252984 38,140
- later than one year but not later than five years 457,671 62,091 457,671 62,091

710,655 100,230 710,655 106,230

‘The general terms of the operating lease commitments
disclosed above are:

i.  anon - cancellable property lease with an term of 3 years. Rent is payable monthly in advance.
Provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimuim lease payments shall be increased by
the lower of CPI or 4% per annum. An option exists to renew the lease for a further period of three
years at the end of the lease term.

1. Non - cancellable leases for rental of office equipment with initial terms of between 3 and 5 years.

Rentals are payable monthly. The agreements do not contain escalation clauses. Options exist to renew
the leases annually at the end of the lease term.
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Charter; Towers Gold Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 5 Oct ]995

Charters Towers Mines Pty Lid Australia 91.5 915 14 Mar 1984
Charters Technology Pty Lid Australia 100 100 13 Jan 2000
Gold Management Pry Lid Australia 100 100 28 Jan 2000
Gold Projects Pty Lid Australia 100 100 25 Jan 2000
Great Mines Limited Australia 100 100 19 Mar 1984
Decprock Mining Pty Limited Australia R1.2 81.2 18 Jun 1984
Citigold FZCO UAE 100 100 11 Dec 2002
Queensland Gold Mines Pty Limited Australia 100 100 27 Feb 2006

Incorporation of subsidiary

Queensland Gold Mines Pty Limited was incorporated by the entity during the year. No assets or liabilities were
acquired during this incorporation.

23 Financial Instruments

tiii {iﬁ[} i IM; l[’“‘*{""’?f/g
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Exposure to credit, interest rate risk and currency risk arise in the normal course of the consolidated entity’s
business. No hedging of this risk is undertaken by the consclidated entity.

Fair Values

w
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Equity Securltlt.s available for sale 2 608 000 2,282,000 - i
Trade and other receivables 1,355,675 1,355,675 2324863 2,324,863
Cash and cash equivalents 2,185,456  2,185456 631,511 631,511
Convertible noles (1.813,583) (1,813,583) (1.663,583)  {(1,663,583)
Loan from associate (300,000) (300,000} (300,000) (300,000}
Trade and other payables (1.063,493) (1,063,493} (1,596,813) (1,596,813
2,972,055 2,646,055  (604,022) (604,022)
Unrecognised (lossesy gains (326,000) - - -
Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without-any-deduction for transaction costs.

24, Subsequent Events

The term loan secured with a fixed and floating charge over Citigold Corporation and its subsidiaries has been
paid in full. No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the half year that have significantly
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations, results of operations or state of affairs of the consolidated

entity in subsequent accounting periods.
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The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. As in previous financial periods, the
ability of the consolidated entity to meets its expenditure commitments and progress with ils development and
exploration program is dependent upon continued capital raising,

26. Contingem Liabilities

Buring the previous accounting period, the entity entered into an agreement with the trustee of a related unit
trust to pay future royalties from gold production. The consideration received for the royalties payable in the
future has been recorded as revenue.

The amount and timing of the payments by the entity is contingent on a2 number of future events and
circumstances, such as the future price of gold and the timing and amount of gold production. The effect of
these circumstances cannot be accurately predicted at the date of signing these financial statements. In general
terms the minimum amount payable under the agreernent is nil and the maximum amount payable is 1.4% of the
value of 40,000 ounces of gold plus one million dollars ($1,600,000).

27. Segment Reporting

The consalidated entity operates in the mining exploration industry. Details of the mining exploration activities
are set out in the review of operations. Each company within the consolidated entity operates within the one
geographic area, being Australia.
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28. Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Directors

The following persons were Directors of Citigold Corporation Ltd during the financial year:

* J J Foley - Non-executive Chairman
. M J Lynch — Managing Director
. Dr P B Blood — Non-executive Director

(b) Other Key Management Personnel

The following persons also have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, during the financial year:
. C A J Towsey — Chief Operating Officer
G Foord - General Manager Engineering
JT'F Lynch — Site Senior Executive
R J Mortison — Exploration Manager
M B Martin — Company Secretary*
R J Shand — Company Secretary*
* Held this position for part of the year
All the above persons were also Key Management Personnel during the year ended 30 June 2006 and are all
employees of Citigold Corporation Limited.

L] L] . . .

(¢) Key management personnel compensation

-2 Consolidated ..."" [0
R g
Shott term employee benefits 1,211,638 1,193,089 948 138 816,381
Post employment benefits 15,397 105,406 53,444 84,436
Share based payments - - - -
1,287,035 1,298495 1,001,582 900,817

The company has taken advantage of the relief provided by under the Corporations Regulations and has
transferred the detailed remuneration disclosures to the Directors Report (item 11).

(d) Key management personnel equity interest
Shares

The number of shares held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

3R

.é”f)fff{f ,,,,, afithe;;

Directors

I} Faoley 4,800,964 - - 4,800,964
M J Lynch 86,668,013 - 106,600 86,774,613
Dr P B Blood - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel

R J Shand - - - -
C A ] Towsey 269,666 - 95,334 365,000
G Foord 320,000 - (185,000) 135,000
TFLynch 86,668,013 - 106,600 86,774,613
R J Morrison 266,000 100,000 (40,803) 325,197
M B Martin - - - -
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The manber of shares held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

Directors

JJ Foley 34,723,149 - (30,795,902) 4,800,964
M J Lynch 118,768,558 706,000 (32,806,545) 86,668,013
D P B Blood - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel

R I Shand 29.675,596 - (29,675,596) -
C A J Towsey 161,750 - 107,916 269,666
G Foord - - 320,000 320,000
FF Lynch 118,768,558 706,000 (32.806,545) 86,668,013
M Desai - - - -
R ] Morrison 151,000 - 115,000 266,000
M B Martin - - - -
Options

The number of options held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entitics, are set out below:

NS
i
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Directors

11 Foley - - - - - -
M J Lynch - - - - - -
Dr P B Blood - - - - - -
| Other Key Management Personnel

| R I Shand - - - - - -
C A I Towsey - - - - - -
G Foord 320,000 - - - 320,000 320,000
JF Lynch - - - - - -
R J Morrison 300,000  (100,000) - - 200,000 200,000
M B Martin - - - - - -
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The number of options held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entitics, are set out below:

Directors

1] Foley 5,000,000 (873,717) - {7,294,000) - -
M J Lynch 8,000,000 (706,000 - (4,126,283) - -
Dr P B Blood - - - -

Other Key Management Personnel

R J Shand - - - - - -
C A J Towsey - - - - -
G Foord - - - 320,000 320,000 320,000
JF Lynch - - - - - -
R J Morrison - - - 300,000 300,000 300,000
M B Martin - - - - - -

(e) Other transactions with Key Management Personnel

The following amounts were foaned to the company by a related party of the following Director and Key
Management Personnel.

S
.
i

it
T ]
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& pari
Directors
JJFoley -
M J Lynch 300,000 - - - 300,000
Dr P B Biood - - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel
R J Shand - - - - -
C A J Towsey - - - - -
G Foord - -
JF Lynch 300,000 - - - 300,000
R J Morrison - - - - -
M B Martin - - - - -

28. Explanation of transition to AE - IFRS

Reconciliation of Income Statement

The adoption of A-IFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Income statement
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet

The adoption of A-IFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Balance Sheet.

Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement

The adoption of A-TFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Cash Flow Statement.
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Directors’ Declaration
The Directors Declare that:
(a) The {inancial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:

@) comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia;

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's and consolidated entity's financial position
as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their
operations and their cash flows, for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) In the director's opinion, there are rcasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable: and

() The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer/chief financial officer for

the financial year ended 30 June 2006 pursuant to Section 295A of the Corporations Act,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

G,

J J Foley M J Lynch
Chairman Director
Sydney

30 September 2006
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NEXIA
COURT
&C0

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT INTERNATTIONAL

TO THE MEMEBERS OF
CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED

Scope

The financial repori, remauneration disclosures and directors ' responsibility

The finencial teport comprises the income staternent, balance sheet, cash flow staternent,
statesents of changes in equity, sccompanying notes to the financial statements, the
disclosures made as reguired by Australisn Accounting Standard A4ASE 124 Relaied
FPanty Disclosures of the directors report as permitted by Corporations Act Regulation
2M.6.04 (“remuneration disclosures™ and the directors’ declatation, (set out on pages 20
to 45), for both Citigeld Corporation Limited (the “Company™) and Citigold Corporation
Limited and its controlled enthties (the “consplidated entity™) for the year ended 30 June
2006. The consolidated entity comprizes both the Cornpany and the entities it controlied
during the year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and truc and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This
includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate acoounting records and intemal
records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and deteet fraud and error, and
for the accounting policies and accounting estimates mherent in the financial report. The
direciors are also responsible for prepating the relevant reconciling information
regarding the adjustments required ynder-the Austrelan Accounting Standard AASB 1
First time Adoplion of Australian Equivalents to Internarional Financial Reporring
Standards.

Audit approach

We have conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members
of the Company. Our andit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards in order to provide reasonable asserance as to whether the financial report is
free_of material misstatement and the remumeration disclosures conply with Austrslion
Accounting Standard AASH 124 and Corporgtions Act Regulation 2M.6.04. The nature
of an audit is influenced by factors such a5 the use of professional judgement, selective
testing, the inherent limitations of internel contre], and the availability of persuasive
rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit canmot gusrantee that a1) material
misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in al} material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corparations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and
odier mandatory financial reponing requirements in Australia, & view whichis consistent
with our understanding of the Company's and the consolidated entity’s financial position,
of their perfornmnce as represented by the results of their operations snd cash flows and
whether the remugeration disclosures comply with Australian Accounting Standard
AASB 124 and Corporation Act Regulation 2M.6.04.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORY
TO THE MEMBERS OF
CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
(Continued)

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the ammums and
disclosures in the firancial report, and

. assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant acoounting cstimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of managemeot’s interna) costrols over financial
reporting when determining the nature and extent of ow procedures, our andit was not designed
to provide assurance on internal controls,

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Andit Opinton
In our opinion, the financial report of Citigald Corporation Linmted is in accordance with:

8 the Corporations Act 2001, including: -

i giving & true and fair view of the Compamy’s and consolidated entity’s financia)
position az at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year eéndad on that data;
and

1] compiying with Accounting Standards and the Cocporations Regulations 2001 ; end

b other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

n

The remumerstion disclogures that are conained in the Rermunieration repott forming part
of the Directars’ Report comply with Australian Accounting Standard A4SH 129 Related
Party Disclosures and Carporations Act Regulation 2M.6.04.

Aoy o Conart - Lo P
Nexia Court & Co . - Stephen
Chartered Accountants Partner

Dated at Syduey; 3o September 2006
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Citigold Corporation Limited
ABN 30060397 177

CORPORATE & REGISTERED OFFICE ‘

19 Lang Parade, Milton Qld 4064 Brisbane Australia
PO Box 1909, Milton Qld 4064 Brisbane Australia
Telephone: +61 7 3870 8000

Facsimilie: +61 7 3870 8111

Email: infolgeitigold.com

CHARTERS TOWERS MINE SITE

Clermont Highway

PO Box 10, Charters Towers Qld 4820 Australia
Telephone: +61 7 4787 8300

Facsimilie: +61 7 4787 8600

Email: mine@ciigold.com

INTERNATIONAL OFFICE
Gold & Diamond Park

Sheikh Zayed Road

PO Box 38148, Dubai, UAE
Telephone: +971 4 340 4588
Facsimilie: +971 4 340 4588
Email: gold@citigold.com

DIRECTORS

John J Foley, Chairman

Mark J Lynch , Managing Director
Dr Peter B Blood, Direclor

COMPANY SECRETARY
Matthew B Martin

EXCHANGE LISTING
Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) Code ‘CTO’
American Depository Receipts (ADR) Code ‘CTOHY”

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services

Level 27, 345 Queen Street, Brisbane QId 4000
Telephone: 1300 552 270

AUDITOR

Nexia Court & Co

Level 29, 264 George Street,
Sydney NSW 2000

BANK
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
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chairman’s letter

Dear Shareholder,

During the 2006 financial year, your company substantially increased shareholder value, with increases
both in share price and market capitalization. Significant debt reduction was undertaken, culminating
in the elimination of our term loan in September 2006. Your company is now free of significant debt.
Warrior Mine was well advanced at 30 June 2006 with the access Decline at 693 metres towards its target of
960 metres, and this target was reached in August 2006. Development of mining levels is continuing with
gold production imminent.

Your company’s share price has increased steadily over the last five years, and closed at 30 june 2006
at 32 cents compared to 14 cents at 1 July 2005. This is an increase of 129% for the year. The market
capitalization trebled from $64 million at 1 July 2005 to $181 million at 30 June 2006. Your company’s
net assets increased 43% over the year from $106 million to $152 million. Our term loan, the company’s
only significant debt, reduced 35%, from 37.5 million to $4.9 million, and this was totally eliminated in
September 2006.

The listed Convertible Notes (ASX Code ‘CTCG’) continued to be a good investment for the Note holders,
giving high returns linked to the rising Australian gold price.

Warrior Mine is achieving its milestone targets. The Board is pleased that we have maintained our excellent
record of zero Lost Time Injuries for the year despite increased activities underground and taking on new
employees. During construction of the decline a very high-grade vein, Sons of Freedom, was intersected
and this will add additional ounces to the resource.

This coming year we are targeting full production at Warrior Gold Mine at the rate of 40,000 ounces per year
and the commencement of development work on the second phase of the Charters Towers Gold Project,
which will take the production rate to 120,000 ounces per year. Later phases will build production to
250,000 ounces per year, while also continuing our active exploration program on the ground surrounding
Charters Towers. We have purchased our first diamond-drilling rig to advance this exploration.

The excellent progress made this year has only been possible by the dedicated efforts of all our employees,
both underground and on surface. Your Board also expresses sincere thanks to our sharehaolders for your
strong support.

The Board looks forward to continued growth in the business and further increasing shareholder
value in 2007.

Gecu

John | Foley
Chairman
Citigold Corporation Limited

citigold corporation limted

\

2006

o

RCATY) (¢

2y
A

SRS

PR

™

R,

.

chairman’s letter




/

2006

annual report

N

review of operations

\_

review of operations

ACHIEVEMENTS

Assets increased 36%

Share price increased 129%

Market capitalization trebted

Warrior mine on target for gold production
Sunburst mine development planning commenced
Zero injuries for the year

Secured loan repaid in full

STRATEGIC BUSINESS SUMMARY

Citigold Corporation is an emerging gold producer
controlling Australia’s richest goldfield located
at Charters Towers in North Queensland. The
mesothermal gold deposit has previously produced
6.6 million ounces (oz) of gold at 34 g/t. The Inferred
Mineral Resource is 10 million oz of gold (23 million
Mt @ 14 g/t Au) with potential to expand. Gold output
is planned to increase from 40,000 oz to 250,000 oz
per year with a mine life of 30 years. Four mines are
planned with an average cash cost to produce gold
under A$250 per oz, The first mine, Warrior, begins
gold production in 2006 at 40,000 oz per year.

SHAREHOLDER VALUE INCREASES

During the past financial year your company’s
market capitalisation has trebled from A$60 million
as at 4 |uly 2005 to A$181 million as at 30 June
2006. During this time the share price moved from
14 cents to 32 cents, an increase of 129%. This is
a reflection of a rising gold price, increased market
sentiment for gold and that an increasing number
of shareholders are appreciating the valuable
asset that Citigold has in the rich Charters Towers
Goldfield and the 10 million ounce gold deposit.

Citigold has in place a strategy to unlock the enormous
shareholder wealth contained in this rich goldfield.
This will begin with the initial production from the
Warrior mine and then grow as the other mines are
developed. Citigold is cost effective in spending
shareholders money and has to date established
the goldfield and infrastructure to extract the gold
at a far less financial cost than its Australian peers.
Australian dollar gold prices of over A$750 an ounce
will generate substantial revenue for the Company.

FINANCIAL POSITION STRENGTHENED

During the financial year, loans were substantially
reduced, culminating in the post balance date
repayment of the secured loan that has been in
existence since 1998. The company is now free
of significant long term debt and the lien over the
company’s assets is removed.

Warrior mine budgets show that Citigold will
generate a cash surplus from operations. During
the year Citigold received strong financial support
from our shareholder base through share placements
and Share Purchase Plan offerings. This relationship
aims to ensure that the main benefit of the success
of the Company will be for its shareholders. Similarly
our joint venture negotiations to fund the second

citigold corporation limted

mine Sunburst are being pursued in a form that will
add value for shareholders. These negotiations have
been underway for some time and are advanced
and continuing. The joint venture aims to ensure
funding for gold production of 80,000 ounces per
year from Sunburst. With Sunburst in operation the
combined output from Citigold’s Charters Towers
operations is budgeted at 120,000 ounces per year.

With sustained plus A$800/0z gold revenue prices the
Warrior mine cash flows indicate that Citigold could
internally fund the development of the second mine,
Sunburst. At this time we intend to pursue the joint
venture path because it would accelerate the increase
in gold production and allow us to commence
development of the third mine, Brilfiant. Warrior is
just the start and therefore other value adding funding
options are also under consideration to develop
the other mines and grow gold production. Further
details will be released as they come to hand.

The Convertible Notes {Notes) issued by Citigold
and listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)
code ‘CTOG’ continue to provide a high rate of
return forinvestors. The Notes issued at 40c continue
to trade above their 40c issue price. The Notes pay
a base 12% p.a. interest rate, plus a bonus rate
based on the A$ gold price, and investors receive a
cheque each quarter from Citigold. The increased
gold price meant that Note holders continue to
receive an interest rate well above the base rate.

CITIGOLD’S ASSETS

The overall Charters Towers Gold Project non-current
assets have beenindependently valued as at 30 June 2006
and have increased to A$155 million, an increase of 36%
overthe assetvaluation of A$114 millionin 2005. Citigold
is required to value its non-current assets each year in
accordance with the Australian International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Citigold Corporation contrels Queensland’s largest
and highest grade major gold deposit of 10 million
ounces of gold, comprising Inferred Minera! Resources
of 23 million tonnes at 14 g/t gold. The assessment
and quantification of Citigold’s gold Mineral Resources
and Ore Reserves is another important development
towards realising the substantial value contained
within the rich asset that is the Charters Towers
goldfield. The assessment of the gold resources at
Charters Towers confirmed that Citigold’s drilling data
base matches the historic high gold grades, that
produced 6.6 million ounces of gold, of 27 metre-
grams per tonne in-situ.

Citigold’s assets include a gold processing plant
and tailings dam capable of handling 340,000
tonnes per year. Underground mining equipment
has been acquired, including twin-boom blast-




hole drilling jumbos, haul trucks and loaders, and an electro-hydrautic diamond-drill rig for exploration
drilling. At least four adjacent mines are planned to be developed at Charters Towers, taking production
to 250,000 ounces per year over the next four years.

MINERAL RESOURCES AND ORE RESERVES

Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves remain unchanged from last year. At 30 June 2006, the Resources and
Reserves are as tabled below:

N—— SR (2 A S CONTARNIED
CATHCORY | TORRES (N Qv oy MRS

Inferred Mineral Resources 23,000,000 14 3 metre-grams per tonne 10,000,000

Indicated Mineral Resources 740,000 15 7 grams per tonne 370,000

(includes Probable Ore Reserve)

Probable Ore Reserves
(contained within Indicated 800,000 13 7 grams per tonne 330,000
Mineral Resource)

Full details are contained in the “Report on the Inferred Mineral Resources for the Charters Towers Gold Project
May 2005” and the “Report on the Indicated Mineral Resources and Probable Ore Reserves for the Charters
Towers Gold Project, August 2005 ” which can be found on the Citigold web site at www.citigold.com (click
on “Reports” then “Technical reports”)

The following statements apply in respect of the information in this report that relates to Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves:

The information is based on, and accurately reflects, information compifed by Mr. Christopher Alan John Towsey, BSc (Hons),
M3c¢, Dip Ed, FAusIMM(CP), MMICA, MAIG, MSME, who is a Corporate Member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy and the Australian Institute of Geoscientists. Christopher Alan John Towsey has relevant experience in relation
to the mineralisation being reported on to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the Joint Ore Reserves Committee
{(JORC) Australasian Code for Reporting of Identified Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr. Towsey is employed full time
by Citigold Corporation Limited as Chief Operating Officer, and has consented in writing to the inclusion in this report of his
compiled information in the form and context in which it appears.

WARRIOR GOLD MINE

Underground Operations

The Warrior Decline had reached a length of 700 metres from the portal at the end of the June Quarter. The
target length of 60m was reached in August 2006. The initial access decline is complete and extension
of this decline to access lower levels of the ore body is progressing threugh normal strong granodiorite
rock in good mining conditions.

The first ore will be mined from a horizontal drive in the ore body commencing approximately 110 metres
below surface. Ore will then be stockpiled and transported to the processing plant to commence gold
production. Several levels will then be excavated in the ore body so that full rate ore extraction (stoping)
can be achieved.
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Cash operating costs for the Warrior mine are
estimated at A$38C per ounce of gold recovered.

During late May and early |une the S3ons of
Freedom (ES) structure was obliquely intersected
in the decline as predicted. The long exposure of
the vein for some 50 metres, along the side and
across the face of the Decline, has yielded valuable
information on its gold content and potential for
mining. Channel sampling of the ES lode at 496m
down the Decline returned 1.1 metres true width
at 40.5 g/t Au, including 0.4 metres true width at
101 g/t Au. At 509m down the Decline, channel
sampling returned 0.8 metre true width at 39.9
g/t Au. A separate channel sample of quartz and
sulphide vein at the same focation returned 0.2
metres true width at 362 g/t Au (11.6 ounces per
tonne), equivalent to 72 grams per tonne over one
metre width.

The Sons of Freedom structure is not yet part of our
mining plan at Warrior and therefore a drilling program
is planned to access the extent of the intersected vein
with the aim of expanding gold production above the
initial planned 40,000 ounces per annum,

Warrior Gold Resource

The Warrior mine will initially access into the
eastern side of the Warrior gold deposits east-west
strike line. The deposit has an overail length of 2
kilometres and has been tested to a depth of 200
metres. The overall Inferred Mineral Resource for
Warrior deposit is 1.9 million tonnes @ 14 g/t Au
containing 840,000 ounces of gold (rounded to
2 significant figures) (see Table 8 on Page 59 of
the Report on the Inferred Mineral Resources for the
Charters Towers Gold Project May 2005). Within the
overall resource, head grades and widths, of the
specific mining areas are expected to vary.

Personnel

Citigold hasbeenexpandingthenumberofpersonnel
at the mine site and reducing its corporate staffing,
The Company has been very successful at securing
experienced mining personnel for its underground
operation in a very competitive marketplace.

Current overall personnel numbers total 52 and are
growing as gold production approaches.

Equipment

The mining plant and mobile machinery fleet
at Charters Towers is gradually being increased
and upgraded.

Cotd Process Plant — Work is essentially complete
on the Black Jack process plant which is ready for
re-commissioning following a full plant inventory,
detailed condition report, and completion of a
scope of works, cost estimates and a budget. Calder
Projects coordinated the refurbishment. The gold
extraction plant is an industry standard carbon-in-
leach (CIL) plant. The stockpiled ore, comprising
the large blasted rock from underground, will
be crushed to less than 12mm, conveyed to the
grinding mill where water and lime are added and
the ore reduced in size to very fine sand {0.17mm).
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The slurry is then pumped into a series of large
tanks where more chemicals are added to dissolve
the gold. Then carbon is added to the tanks, to
absorb and concentrate the gold, and later the
gold is stripped off the carbon by another chemical,
electroplated and smelted into gold ‘dore’ bars.
The ‘dore’, that may average around 50% gold, is
shipped by security transport to a specialist gold
refiner to be made into the pure gold bars that can
be readily sold on the international market. The
capacity of the plant will only be partially required
for Warrior and is capable of handling the second
mine, Sunburst, when it is developed next.

Underground Blast-hole Drill Rigs - A new
Atlas Copco Rocket Boomer M2D twin-boom
development drill (Jumbo), and a second near new
machine, have been operating and contributing
to the acceleration of the decline. The Jumbos are
principally powered by efficient grid electric power
rather than diesel fuel. An additional specialist
blast-hole drill rig has been sourced, which will be
used for stoping (mining of the gold ore).

Underground Haul trucks - Citigold has recently
taken delivery of a Caterpillar AD40 low profile
underground haulage truck and a second AD40
is being sourced. These trucks have a capacity of
40 tonnes each which will significantly improve
haulage times and subsequently lead to reduced
costs. Other haulage trucks in the fleet include
three with 20 tonne capacity.

Inaddition the fleetincludes several Load Haul Dump
{LHD) units for moving the blasted rock from the
rock face into the haul trucks that take the ore and
waste to the surface. Other ancillary equipment
includes road graders, multipurpose tool vehicles
to assist with installing underground services etc.
A workshop is located on site for all routine
maintenance and highly technical repairs are
outsourced to local engineering firms.

The equipment fleet is approaching the full
production requirement.

SUNBURST GOLD MINE

Planning has commenced for the start of access
ways and ventilation into the Sunburst gold mine,
located at the eastern end of Charters Towers
city. The Sunburst structure runs for some two
kilormetres east-west and dips to the north at about
45 degrees. It includes the known Queen, Sunburst
and Golden Gate ore bodies previously mined prior
to 1920. Citigold plans to mine drilled extensicns
of the structure outside of previous workings.

The Sunburst mine is within the Citigold’s overall
gold Mineral Resource area.

Sunburst was originally scheduled to produce
60,000 ounces per year. Current planning has
increased this to 80,000 ounces per year based on
developing two mining areas simultaneously.

Cash operating costs for the Sunburst mine are
estimated at A$310 per oz of gold recovered.




BRILLIANT GOLD REEF PROJECT (BGRP)

In 2001, a separate sublease was created over part
of the central mining tenements, called the Brilliant
Gold Reef Project. The Project was established as
a joint venture to undertake exploration and gold
production and allowed investors to ‘farm-in’.
Gold Projects Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Citigold, retains about 97% of the units. The BGRP
is a managed investment scheme controlled by a
Responsible Entity for all investors. Funds raised were
fully expended in the completion of 3,927 metres of
drilling. A further public cffer to raise the balance
of the funds did not proceed, as the Australian
Taxation Office would not issue a further Product
Ruling to ensure tax deductibility of the investment.
Citigold is currently maintaining the Project and all
the associated costs. The Company is considering
various ways to optimise the structure of the BGRP
in order to advance the project, and to ensure the
most reasonable outcome is achieved for all parties.

EXPLORATION

Exploration Strategy

Citigold's exploration strategy is focused around and
adjacent to its mining operations at Charters Towers.
This s “brownfields” exploration, exploring in and
around known mineralised areas, rather than exploring
“greenfields” or unknown areas. The company
holds over 200 square kilometers of exploration
tenements covering approximately 80 prospects
that have potential for economic mineralisation.
These prospects have either returned significant gold
values in surface rock chip samples (above 5 grams of
gold per tanne), or have old workings on them from
which Queensland State government records indicate
significant production {more than 500 ounces of gold).

Exploration to date has yielded the currently
defined 10 million ounce gold mineral resource.

Exploration Activities
Geological Mapping

Citigold's exploration and studies to date have led
to the conclusion that the overall Charters Towers
goldfield, currently held by Citigold, has the potential
to contain up to 50 million ounces in gold mineral
resources. This conclusion is well founded on the facts
that the field has already yielded 6.6 million ounces of
gold, that Citigold has already defined an additional
10 million ounces of mineral resources from a part of
the goldfield down to 1200 metres depth, and that
the structures containing the mineralization probably
extend to 3,000 metres depth. Significant mining to
date has generally only been to 700 metres deep.
This makes the area a 16 million cunce field down to
1200m depth, and there are at least four additional
major parallel structures that have been mapped, are
mineralised and have been previously partly mined,
that remain unexplored.

This strategy has lead Citigold to start acquiring its
own sophisticated and modern diamond drilling
fleet. The building of this fleet commenced w
ith the recent acquisition of a new computerized Atlas-
Copco Diamec UBAPC drill rig to undertake diamond-
core drilling at Charters Towers. The U8 rig is computer
controlled and a low-noise electro-hydraulic rig suitable
forsurfaceandundergrounddrilling poweredby efficient
local electric grid power. Therig is capable of drillingNQ
{48mm diameler) cores to 1,500 metres vertical depth.
This rig will be used to expand existing reserves ahead
of mining and increase the overall gold resources.

Growing the gold resources and reserves is a core
business for Citigold. The decision to acquire our
own drill rigs is so that we can carry out this work
on our time schedule in a cost efficient manner. The
company has budgeted an intense drilling program
and it made economic sense to own the drill rigs.

This coming year we expect to acquire another
two diamond drill rigs.

Detailed geclogical mapping was conducted during the year on 12 Exploration Permits surrounding Charters

Towers, as tabled below:

XN RAN R
RERMBERNOMEER i
EPM 8563 Scorbre

2R O S HGHRNAN E

EPM 8564 Farrenden

EPM 10593 Santiago South

EPM 11067 Cumberland

EPM 11658 GSQ 256698

EPM 13106 g§8119873669857é32:?s?2n§pur'
EPM 13182 Millchester

EPM 13453 G5Q 229700

EPM 13931 Mt Pleasant, GSQ 142612
EPM 13932 Hill 300

EPM 14541 GSQ 171721, Black Jack Footwall
EPM 15091 7 prospects

SOTATION

Covers the northern part of Charters Towers city,

1.5 km west of the Warrior Mine
1km east of processing plant
2.5km SE of processing plant

5 km Se of processing plant
3km south of processing plant

3km east of Charters Towers

5km 5E of processing plant

10km SSW of processing plant

7km NNW of Charters Towers

1 km west of processing plant

9 kilometres southwest of the processing plant.

The processing plant is at the Black Jack mine site, 9km southwest of the centre of Charters Towers.
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Sampling and Assaying
During the year, Citigold analysed 307 rock chip samples, 8 soil samples, 8 stream sediment samples and
65 rock face samples. The samples were assayed by independent laboratory SGS.

Significant assays have been released to the ASX in previous Quarterly Activities reports and are on
Citigold's web site.

Drilling

Data from 31 drill holes previously drilled by Normandy Mining Ltd in the 1990s on ground now covered
by Citigold’s EPM13932 were located in a literature search of previous work. This area is outside the central
historic goldfield where the majority of the gold was produced. Weakly anomalous gold was identified in
six of these drill holes on EPM13932. This Exploration Permit is centred 12 km west of Charters Towers
and extends for 20km in a north-south direction, The drill hole collar locations were shown in the June
Quarter Activities report.

Citigold plans to commence a major new drilling programme in calendar 2006.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety and Health Performance

The Fatal Injury Frequency Rate (FIFR) (fatalities per million hours worked) for the 2006 financial year is zero.
In the 13 years that the Company has been in operation, there have been no work-related fatalities in our
operations and no injuries or illnesses from which employees have not made a full recovery. In 2006, there were
no serious incidents, Lost Time or Disabling Injuries reported. The Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR} per
million hours worked reduced from 32 in 2002 to zero in 2003 and remains zero this year. The Disabling Injury
Frequency Rate (DIFR), introduced in 2002 under the NOSA Five Star risk management systern, is zero. The
DIFR is also calculated per million hours worked, but is a better measure of injury statistics as it includes injuries
where no time is lost.

(57 P UOIRANC: VEARENGED  VEARGNDED | VEARENDED VAR ENDED
(N R URE 90803 JUNE: 39 JURE 30 2005 UNIG 30 2006

FIFR 0 0 0 0

LTIFR 0 o 0 0

DIFR 0 0 0 0

As an indication of our commitment to health and safety, Citigold’s Chief Operating Officer, Chris Towsey,
has been appointed as Chairman of the Health and Safety Task Force of the Australasian Institute of
Mining & Metallurgy.

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY

The Company had no reportable environmental incidents during 2006. The Board, management and staff of
Citigold fully support a formal environmental policy which states that:

‘Citigold Corporation is committed to balancing the protection of the natural environment with the need for economic
growth. Application of technically-proven and ecoromically feasible environmental protection measures will be
exercised throughout exploration, development, mining, processing and decommissioning activities to meet the
requirerments of legislation as a minimum.”’

Citigold’s environmental practices are monitored by the Queensland Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
and the Department of Mines and Energy. Citigold operates under approved Environmental Authorities issued
by the EPA and in compliance with our Plan of Operations submitted to the agency.

COMMUNITY

The Company continues to support local community and charity groups with donations of both personnel time
and money, continuing its association with local community activities including schools, sports, Country Music
Festival and rodeos.

citigold corporation limted




director’s report

Your directors present their report together with the financial report of Citigold Corporation Limited and the
consolidated financial report of the consolidated entity for the year ended 30th |une 2006 and the auditor's

report therein.

1. DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Citigold Corporation Limited during the whole of the financial year and
up to the date of this report: ) ] Foley, M ] Lynch, and P B Blood.

(G AT B AN (O RIS

‘g
A T

EPXHE LN (ot

J | Foley
BD, LLB,

BL (Dub)
Appointed
02/07/1993

M | Lynch
FAICD
Appointed
02/07/1993

P B Blood

PhD, BSc Agr, DIC
Appointed
26/05/2004

Company Secretary
Mr Matthew B Martin was appointed to the position of Company Secretary on 12 April 2006. Mr Martin has
worked in various roles as part of several global teams, including international banking capital raisings and
accrued skills in most aspects of corporate finance and accounting. He has strong skills in systems compliance,
multinational financial statements, forecasting, reporting and analysis. In his previous employment he acted as
Company Secretary for client companies.

69

67

Non-executive Chairman for 12.5 years, Deputy Chairman

6 months. Graduating in law from the University of Sydney

in 1969, Mr Foley was admitted to practise as a barrister in
New South Wales in 1971. He was called to the Irish Bar in
1989 and admitted as a Member of the Honourable Society of
Kings’ Inns in Dublin. Mr Foley has over 30 years’ experience
in the gold mining industry, has been a guest speaker at the
World Cold Council in New York and is a past Director of the
Australian Gold Council.

Managing Director for 13 years. Former director of several
companies involved in the mining industry Mr Lynch has

been actively involved in gold exploration and mining as

an employee, consultant and director since 1979, in both
private and public companies. Hands-on experience in

mine management and mining tenure administration in
Queensland including leading the team that developed the
ColdTec Mining System in 2001. Mr Lynch is a Director of the
Queensland Resources Council and a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Non-executive Director for 2 years. Former Professor of Finance

- School of Business, Bond University Qld. Dr Blood has particular
skills in the areas of finance and administration. He is a Global
Investment Consultant with qualifications in Agriculture (BSc Agr),
DIC (Imperial College Science & Technology UK} and a PhD from
the University of London. Having worked for the World Bank, Asian
Development Bank, United Nations Development Program and
other multilateral organizations in many countries, his distinguished
career includes being a Marshali Scholar (London), Fulbright Senior
Fellow (USA) & Commodity Trading Advisor (USA).

I HEOPAS
SPONSIBLTS
. - i
Non-executive
Chairman of Audit
and Finance,
Remuneration
and Health, Safety
and Environment
committees.

Managing Director
Member of Health,
Safety and
Environment
committee,

Member of Audit
and Finance,
Remuneration
and Health, Safety
and Environment
committees.
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Meetings of Directors
The number of directors’ meetings (including board committees) held and the number of meetings attended
by each director during the year ended 30 June 2006 were:

: A I & EANLTH, SACETY & PR - .
E;lo. of m;etin—g;s—HQ;IZi- 10 2 "> - .
( | N©X @% ME:ETW{NIC:&;&U Lﬁﬂ‘xltﬂi’fp).ﬁ-m |
Il Foley 10 2 a* -
M ] Lynch 10 * " *
P B Blood 9 2 * -

* Not a member of the relevant committee
** Health, Safety and Environment issues are discussed and mine reports considered by Directors at each Board meeting,
*** Remuneration issues are considered and discussed by the Directors at Board meetings through out the year, as required.

Directors’ interests

The relevant interest of each director in the shares and options issued by the companies within the consolidated
entity and other related bodies corporate, as notified by the directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in
accordance with s205G (1) of the Corporations Act, at the date of this report is detailed in the following table.

B BIRECTENR SHAGES QPTIONS ]
) ) Foley 4,493,418 Nil

M ] Lynch 86,774,613 Nil

P B Blood Nil Nil

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year the principal continuing activities of
the consolidated entity consisted of exploration and
development of the Charters Towers geldfield. There
has been ne significant change in the nature of these
activities during the year.

3. DIVIDENDS - CITIGOLD
CORPORATION LIMITED

No amount has been paid or declared by way of
dividend by the Company during the year. The
directors do not recommend a dividend at this time.

4. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE
STATE OF AFFAIRS

Significant changes inthe state of affairs on the consolidated
entity during the financial year were as follows:

(a) Anincrease in ordinary shares in the Company
from 458,293,482 to 566,927,749 as a result of:

citigold corporation limted

Piacement of ordinary shares @ 10 cents 24,202,876

Placement of ordinary shares @ 11 cents 13,430,000

Placement of ordinary shares @ 15 cents 22,582,929

Placement of ordinary shares @ 16 cents 16,300,000

Share Purchase Plan allotment @ 12.5 cents 15,133,284

Share Purchase Plan allotment @ 15 cents 13,482,680
Options exercised @ 15 cents 3,502,498

Net cash received was used to continue the exploration
and development activities of the Company.

See Note 18 of the Financial Statements.

(b) Revaluation of assets

The Non Current Assets of Citigold Corporation
were reviewed by independent consulting mining
engineers. The Property Plant & Equipment of the
Company was valued as at 30 June 2006. The value
of the mining tenements has now been upgraded
resulting in an increase in the overall value of
the Charters Towers Gold Project to $155 million.




5. POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS

The loan secured with a fixed and floating charge over
Citigold Corporation and its subsidiaries has been paid
in full. See Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

6. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A review of the consolidated entity’s operations
during the year and the results of these operations are
disclosed elsewhere in the Annual Report.

7. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND
EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Likely developments in the operations of the
consolidated entity are:

(a) the continuation of exploration activity aimed at
increasing resources and reserves,

(b) aincrease in mining activity and the
commencement of gold preduction later in
calendar 2006.

Additional comments on expected results are included
in the review of operations.

8. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

During the financial year the Company paid premiums
to insure all Directors and Officers of the Company
against claims brought against the individual while
performing services for the Company and against
expenses relating thereto, other than conduct
involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the
Company. Under the terms and conditions of the
insurance contract, the nature of liabilities insured
against and the premium paid cannot be disclosed.

The Company has not otherwise, save as enshrined in
the Company’s constitution, during or since the end
of the financial year, in respect of any person who is or
has been an officer of the Company:

(a) indemnified or made any relevant agreement for
indemnifying against a liability, including costs
and expenses in successfully defending
legal proceedings; or

(b} paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a
contract insuring against a liability from the costs
or expenses to defend legal proceedings.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

Entities in the consclidated entity are subject to
significant environmental regulation in respect to its
exploration and mining activities in gold.

The organisation has developed criteria to determine
areas of ‘particular’ or ‘significant’ importance, with
regard to environmental performance. These are
graded 1 to 4 in terms of priority.

Level 1 incident - major non compliance with
regulatory requirements resulting in potential political
outcry and significant environmental damage of both
a long and short term nature.

Level 2 incident - significant non compliance
resulting in regulatory action, however,
environmental damage is only of a short term nature.

Level 3 incident — minor non compliance - no fine is
imposed, however, regulatory authority is notified.

Level 4 incident — non compliance with internal
policies and procedures. The incident is contained
on site.

In the last year the following incidents have occurred.

HRVEL MEVWREL O LEWRL  LEVEL
T A 3 4

INCIDENTS - - - -

The Company has an internal reporting and monitering
system with regard to environmental management
on the site. The Company employs an environmental
officer to monitor all water quality, noise and air quality
issues as well as liaise with the community on activities
that may impact on the local area.

10. AUDIT/NON-AUDIT SERVICES AND
AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The fees paid or payable for services provided by the
auditor of the Company are set out in Note 4 of the
Financial Statements.

During the year Nexia Court & Co, the Company’s
auditor, has performed certain other services in
addition to their statutory duties. The board has
considered the non-audit services provided during the
year by the auditor and is satisfied that the provision
of those non-audit services during the year by the
auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise,
the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act.

11. REMUNERATION REPORT

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two
non-executive directors, advises the Board on
remuneration policies and practices generally.
The Committee can make recommendations
on remuneration packages and other terms of
employment for executive directors, non-executive
directors and senior executives.

Executive remuneration and other terms of
employment are reviewed by the Committee when
necessary having regard to performance, relevant
comparative information and independent expert
advice. As well as a base salary, remuneration packages
include superannuation and use of motor vehicles.
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Remuneration packages are set at levels that are
intended to attract and retain executives capable of
managing the consolidated entity’s operations.

Remuneration and terms of employment for the
Managing Director are formalised in an employment
agreement. Except for the Managing Director/Chief
Executive Officer, Mr Mark Lynch, all executives are
permanent employees of the Company.

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the
Managing Director are formalised in an employment
agreement. This agreement is for a term of 6 years,
commencing January 1 2003 and terminating on
December 31 2008. The Company may terminate
upon 3 months notice. In the event the termination is
by reason of circumstances that the Company cannot
fully utilise the services of the Managing Director,
the Managing Director is entitled to payment of a

cash amount equal to three years of employment.
No such payment is te occur if the termination
is due to a substantial breach of the agreement’s
terms and conditions and the Company has proven
such breach.

The Board, within the maximum amount approved
by shareholders from time to time, determines
remuneration of non-executive directors. The fees
have been determined by the Board having regard to
industry practice and the need to obtain appropriately
qualified persons. Non-executive directors are also
entitled to statutory superannuation.

Details of the nature and amount of each element
of the remuneration of each director of Citigold
Corporation Limited and key management personnel
of the Company and the consolidated entities are set
out in the following tables.

Payments to specified Directors and Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 June 2006

TP IR G RE AN O ERY CEERER] T“J;“‘@ g‘@" e
TS BENEENRSSK EN BRSNS NN B AR N Y Bi‘_SxD VOUA
S B o A BN ISR A WV ESS

Directors
| | Foley
Non-executive Chairman 35,000 - 16,608 3,150 150,000 - 204,758
M | Lynch’
Managing Director 233,000 - 983 20,970 30,500 - 285,453
Dr P B Blood = 30,000 - . - - - 30,000
Non-executive Director
Other Key Management Personnel
C A | Towsey
Chief Operating Officer 123,595 - 10,904 19,977 49,568 - 204,044
R | Marrison
Exploration Manager 115,350 - 2,184 10,149 13,996 - 141,679
| F Lynch
Site Senior Executive 125,000 - - 11,250 - - 136,250
G Foord _ 55,169 - 2,655 10,039 41,486 - 109,349
General Manager Engineering
M B Martin?
Corporate accountant/ 46,228 - - 5,043 - - 51,271
Company Secretary

2
R | Shand 75,990 39,000 3,063 6,178 - - 124,231
Company Secretary
Total 839,332 39,000 36,397 86,756 285,550 - 1,287,035

1. During the year ended 30 june 2006 M Lynch was based in the U.A.E,

2. R | Shand resigned as Company Secretary on 12 April 2006,

3. M B Martin was appointed Company Secretary on 12 April 2006 before that he was empioyed as Corporate Accountant.
Amounts received and paid in both the above named positions are included in the amounts above.
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Payments to specified Directors and Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 June 2005

_ o , . A T
5 SALARY  EUTEMR @R s ‘1“73“ _— :

N IHHES BRES HREETS ARLAER e A
SREHEN BENER) ‘,4‘ BEN RRLETER IS RS B

Directors

|JFoley 33,000 - 2,169 2,970 150,000 . 188,139

Non-executive Chairman

M) Lynch 233,00 . - 20,970 - - 253,970

Managing Director

Dr P B Blood

Non-executive Director 30,000 ) ) 2,700 ) ) 32,700

Other Key Management Personnel

'é' shand 77,304 ; 1,992 6,957 - . 86,253

ompany Secretary

C A | Towsey

Chief Operating Officer 106,125 - 7,190 14,015 56,890 - 184,220

G Foord o 56,442 ; 7,190 38,477 37,081 - 139,190

Ceneral Manager Engineering

| F Lynch i

Site Seniior Executive 126,767 . 7,214 11,120 - 145,101

2 I Morrison 105,654 . ; 8197 11,363 - 125,214

xploration Manager

M Desai

international Chief 143,708 - - - - - 143,708

QOperating Officer

Total 912,000 - 25 755 105 406 255 334 - l 298 495

Share based compensation
No share based compensation was granted to any directors or other Key management personnel of the Company and
the consolidated entity as part of their remuneration during the period ending 30 June 2006,

12. LOANS TO DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

No loans were granted to any directors or other key management persorinel of the Company and the
group during the period ending 30 June 2006.

Auditor’s Independence declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To the Directors of Citigold Corporation Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of the financial year ended
30 June 2006 there have been:

* No contravention of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporation Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

* No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
Nexia Court & Co

Chartered Accountants
Sydney

Stephen Rogers
Partner '

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors

| ] Foley @u M ] Lynch
Chairman Director

30 September, 2006
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The directors’ objective is to increase shareholder value
within an appropriate framework which protects the
rights and enhances the interests of shareholders and
ensures the consolidated entity is properly managed.

The Board supports the Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations
published by the Australian Stock Exchange {(‘ASX’)
Corporate Governance Council in March 2003. The
Board has reviewed the recommendations and in many
cases, the Company has in place policies and practices
that are generally consistent with those set out in the
recommendations. In the limited circumstances where
the Company’s corporate governance practices do not
correlate with the recommendations, the Company
does not consider that the practices are appropriate
for the Company due to the size of the Company or
its Board. The following is structured with reference
to the 10 principles contained in the ASX Corporate
Governance Council’s publication.

Principle 1:  Lay solid foundations for the
management and oversight

Principle 2:  Structure the Board to add value

Principal 3: ~ Promote ethical and responsible
decision making

Principal 4:  Safeguard integrity in financial
reporting

Principal 5:  Make timely and balanced disclosure

Principal 6:  Respect the rights of shareholders

Principal 7: Recognise and manage risk

Principal 8:  Encourage enhanced performance

Principle 9:  Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Principle 10:  Recognise the legitimate interests of
stakeholders

A. BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board is comprised of three (3} Directors, being
2 non-executive directors and one executive director,
Mr M ) Lynch. A majority of the Board is non-
executive directors, including the Chairman. All non-
executive directors are regarded as independent by
the company.

Entities connected with Mr )§ Foley had business
dealings with the consolidated entity during the year,
as described in the directors’ report above. Mr | |
Foley declared his interests in those dealings to the
Company and took no part in decisions relating to
them. These dealings were not considered to be of
an amount or nature that would affect Mr Foley's
independent judgment.

Entities connected with Mr M| Lynch had business
dealings with entities in the consolidated entity
during the year. Mr M| Lynch declared his interests in
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those dealings to the Company and took no part in
decisions relating to them.

The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the
position of each Director who is in office at the date
of the annual report, their meeting attendances and
their term of office are detailed in the Directors’
Report. Each director brings relevant complementary
skills and experience to the Board covering the areas
of legal, finance and operations.

As the Board acts on behalf of and is accountable
to shareholders, the Board seeks to identify the
expectations of shareholders, as well as other
reqgulatory and ethical expectations and obligations.
The Board is responsible for:

* appreval of corporate strategies and the
annual budget

+ monitoring financial performance including
approval of the annual and half-year financial
reports and liaison with the Company’s auditors

s appointment of, and assessment of the
performance of the Managing Director

* monitoring managerial performance, and

« ensuring the significant risks facing the
consolidated entity have been identified and
appropriate and adequate control, monitoring
and reporting mechanisms are in place.

The Company has a small Board and management
team which enables roles and functions to be flexible
to meet specific requirements where necessary. The
responsibility for the operations of the consolidated
entity is delegated by the Board to the Managing
Director and the executive team. The Board assures
that this team is adequately qualified and experienced
to discharge their responsibilities.

B. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of committees to
assist the execution of its duties. Each committee has
its own autonomy with authority delegated to it by
the Board and the manner in which the committee
is to operate.

Current committees of the Board are:

* the audit & finance committee

* the remuneration committee

* the health, safety and environment committee

The Board reviews at appropriate times its performance
and the performance of the Board committees. Such
reviews entail a vigorous and frank discussion outside
the normal program of Board meetings.

The Company’s Constitution specifies that all directors
(with the exception of the Managing Director) must,
by rotation, retire from office at each Annual General
Meeting (AGM) such that at least one director stands
for election at each AGM. Where eligible, a director
may stand for re-election.




Audit & Finance Committee

The audit & finance committee consists of the
following non-executive directors: | Foley (Chairman)
and PB Blood

The main responsibilities of the audit & finance
committee are to:

= review and report to the Board on the annual
report, the annual and half-year financial reports
and all other financial information published by
the company or refeased to the market

s assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness
of the organisation’s internal control
environment covering

(a) effectiveness and efficiency of operations

(b) reliability of financial reporting

() compliance with applicable laws and regulations

* determine the scope of the internal control
checks and ensure they are coordinated with the
external auditors.

* recommend tc the Board the appointment,
removal and remuneration of the external
auditors, review the terms of their engagement,
and the scope and quality of the audit.

The Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer confirm that the financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2006 represent a true and fair
view of Citigold’s financial position and performance
and that the reports conform with relevant a
ccounting standards.

In fulfilling its responsibilities, the audit & finance
committee receives regular reports from and meets
with management and the external auditors.
The external auditors have a clear line of direct
communication at any time to either the Chairman of
the audit committee or the Chairman of the Board. The
Auditor also attends the Annual General Meeting.

The audit & finance committee has authority, within
the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any information
it requires from any employee or external party.

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

The health, safety & environment committee consists
of the following executive and non-executive directors:
)] Foley, PB Blood and M| Lynch.

The consolidated entity recognises the importance
of environmental and occupational health and safety
(OH&S) issues and is committed to the highest
levels of performance. To help meet this objective
an Environmental, Health and Safety Management
System (EHSMS) has been established by mine
management. The EHSMS is a tool that allows the
systematic  identification of environmental and
OH&S issues and ensures they are managed in a
structured manner.

Through the EHSMS, the consolidated entity aims to:

comply with all relevant legislation
continually assess and improve the impact of its
operations on the environment

+ encourage employees to actively participate in the
management of environmental and OH&S issues,
and

= use energy and other resources efficiently.

Informationoncompliancewithsignificantenvironmental
regulations is set out in thedirectors’ report.

Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee consists of the following
non-executive directors: || Foley and PB Blood.

The remuneration committee advises the Board on
remuneration policies and practices generally and can
make recommendations on remuneration packages
and other terms of employment for directors and
senior executives. Independent advice and industry
information may be obtained from time to lime on
the appropriateness of remuneration packages.

Remuneration levels are set at levels that are
intended to attract and retain appropriately qualified
and experienced directors and senior executives
capable of managing the consolidated entity’s
operations. Remuneration of non-executive directors
is determined by the Board within the maximum
amount approved by the shareholders from time to
time. Remuneration packages do not have guaranteed
based or performance based components.

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits,
other than statutory superannuation, to non-executive
directors.

The consolidated entity has not formed a nomination
committee because there are only 3 Directors. The
Board as a whole is able to efficiently address the issue
of board competencies.

Further information on the remuneration paid to all
directors’ and key management personnel is set out in
the Remuneration Report and nole 28 to the financial
statements.
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C. RISK MANAGEMENT

Due to the size of the Board, a separate risk
management committee has not been established.
The Board believes that it is important for all Board
members to take a proactive role to the company’s
risk management and internal compliance and control
procedures. The Board monitors the financial and
operational aspects of the company’s activities and
considers the advice of the external auditor and other
external advisors.

Risk Profile

Citigold operates field exploration for gold in
Queensland and owns two separate underground
mining operations, the Warrior Gold Mine and the
Central Decline, It also owns and operates a 340,000
tonne per year gold processing plant. The risk profile
is typical of the mining industry, and is heavily
reqgulated by the Queensland State Government. It is
an ASX listed company, with a market capitalisation
of approximately $232 million at a share price of 40
cents. Citigold has been dependent on capital raising
by sale of shares to investors since its inception in 1993,
Once gold production commences from the Warrior
Gold Mine Citigold’s cash flows will be dependent on
the amount of gold produced, production costs, and
the international price of gold.

Financial Risks

Financial risks are identified and managed by the
Board with tasks detegated to the Managing Director
and senior executives. Budgets, variances, cost
reports, commodity prices, price trends and cash
flow projections are analysed by management and
submitted to the Board for review at Board meetings.
Cash flows are submitted to ASX each Quarter and full
financial reports submitted twice per year to the ASX.

Operational Risks

Operational risks are reviewed yearly by the NOSA
Five Star Integrated Risk Management System. This
is a commercial product originally produced by the
National Occupational Safety Association, operated by
Citigold, with the results audited annually by external
consultants. This system identifies all aspects of risks
of the operation, particularly those related to safety,
health, environment and social impact. Citigold’s
operations are subject to regulation and regular
inspection and monitoring by the Queensland State
Government Department of Mines and Energy and the
Environmental Protection Authority.

Assessment of Effectiveness of Risk Management
Internal Audit

No formal internal audit is conducted, as the small
number of employees (less than 60) allows the normal
weekly and monthly monitoring of budgets, variances,
costs and finances to adequately manage financial and
before operational risk.
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D. INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

Directors and Board committees have the right, in
connection with their duties and responsibilities,
to seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expense. Prior consent by the full Board is
required, but this will not be unreasonably withheld.

E. SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Information is communicated to shareholders
through:

* The annual report which is distributed to all
shareholders

¢ The half-yearly report which is made available by
way of an ASX release
The Annual General Meeting
ASX releases in accordance with the consolidated
entity's continuous disclosure obligations

* Information available on the Company’s website
at www.citigold.com

Shareholders are invited to advise the Company of
their email addresses. ASX announcements, once
released, are then able to be emailed directly to the
shareholder.

F. DISCLOSURE AND ETHICAL STANDARDS

All directors, executives and staff of the consolidated
entity are made aware of the ASX's continuous disclosure
requirementsand operateinanenvironmentwhereemphasis
is placed on full and appropriate disclosure to the market,
All directors, executives and staff of the consolidated entity
are required to abide by all legal requirements, the Listing
Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange, the Corporations
Act with the regard to trading in the Company’s securities
and appropriate standards of ethicai conduct with regard
to the operation of the consolidated entity.

A Code of Conduct (the Code) as adopted by the
Board sets out ethical standards expected of all
directors, executives and employees. The Code is
reviewed and updated as necessary to generally reflect
industry standards of integrity and professionalism.
The Code covers:

professional conduct

customer and supplier relations

other employees

compliance with laws and regulations
conflicts of interest

confidential information

® B 8 & & @




FUNANCUAL SUN TEMIEIN '**‘fl_‘f_' S

FOR THE YEAR £ @ )
30 JUNE 2006

R A S TR N S e




06

®

wooT 2

AN
woad(@

[Ca

\
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consolidated income statement

for the year ended 30 June 2006

(OB ABRTHD) & i HAOMBANY
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NOTES O LRE AW H0JRE A6 LNE e LR 2206
$ § § 5

—_
-_ .

Revenue

Other income 2 324,362 67,812 458,850 510,864

Personnel Expenses (908,320) (788,902) (241,937) (355,862)
Depreciation (940,771 (831,531) (936,862) (828,497)
Finance costs (981,341) (850,037) (977,252) {840,887)
Consulting expense (107,902) (248,545) (107,394) (263,905)
Loss on sale of non-current assets - {2,350,273) - -
Other expenses 3 (1.648,897) (507,623) {1,238,377) (708,616)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense (4.262,869) (5,909,099) (3,042,972) (2,486,903)
Income tax expense - - - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax from operations (4,262,869) {(5,909,099) (3,042,972) {2,486,903)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority interest (54) (431) - -

[ Profit/(Loss) attributable to

members of the parent entity (4,262,815) {5,908,668) (3,042,972) (2,486,903)

‘——_____-—ﬁ_____.—%—\___‘—__

Earnings per share:
Basic (cents per share) 6 {0.82) cents (1 .32) cents
Diluted (cents per share) 6 (0.80) cents (1 .28) cents

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 20 to 37.
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as at 30 June 2006

balance sheet

[
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G %

Current assets -

Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,185,456 631,511 2,106,934 573,586 ‘ @

Receivables 9 1,477,381 2,324,863 2,378,833 3,145,669 i ”8

Inventories 10 485,570 438,805 485,570 438,805 | \f‘\

Investments (at fair value) 13 2,282,000 - 2,282,000 -
[Towlcumentasels " " gasoar  3msire gassmr atisoss”

Non-current assets ‘ ;-2

Property, plant and equipment 11 155,796,726 113,924,328 150,746,482 108,541,217 | £

Other 12 509,257 509,257 11,102,781 11,102,781 -

Total non-current assets 156,305,983 114,433,585 161,849,263 119,643,998 ,

Total assets 162,736,390 117,828,764 169,102,600 123,802,058 | ‘

Current liabilities | :

Payables 14 1,496,049 1,596,815 1,485,294 2,724,420

Interest bearing liabilities 15 7,533,636 7,830,084 7,533,636 7,830,084

Provisions 17 264,641 178,388 264,641 178,388

Total current liabilities 9,294,326 9,605,287 9,283,571 10,732,892 =

Non-current liabilities 2

Interest bearing liabilities 15 972,955 1,684,512 972,955 1,684,512 §

Provisions 17 522,738 564,913 522,738 564,913 3

Total nen-current liabilities 1,495,693 2,249,425 1,495,693 2,249,425 :';

Total liabilities 10,790,020 11,854,712 10,779,264 12,982,318 %

Netassets 151946370 108974052 158325,335 110819,740 3

Equity §

issued capital 18 87,521,310 73,539,490 87,521,310 73,539,490 et

Reserves 20 105,753,466 69,384,254 105,182,037 68,812,824

Accumulated Losses 19 (41,397,830 (37,019,1 70) (34,380,011) (31,532,573)

Parent entity interest 151,876,946 105,904,573 158,323,335 110,819,740

Minority interest 69,424 69,479 - -

Totatequy  ——

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 20 to 37,

151,946,370 105,974,052 158,323,335 1 10,819,740 .

citigold corporation limted




20066

VOO

Fri
s

RO

N

)

Al

consolidated statement of changes in equity K

18

consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2006

| consenmrm

NOTES W LREDES 39 LRIE 2005
B )

Profit/(Loss) for the period 19 (4,262,869)  (5,909,099)
Total recognised income and expense for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (4,262,815) (5,908,668}
Minority interest (54) (431}
Total equity opening balance 105,904,572 105,904,572
(Loss) /Profit for the period (4,262,815) (5,908,668)
Reserve movement 20 36,369,212 56,788,000
Contributions of equity, net of 13,981,820 5,166,186

transaction costs

[ Total equity closing balénce

VAL INDED VAR RO

151,946,370 105,974,052

T COIANY

AR ERIEHD
o LR AT
$
(3,042,972)

(3,042,972)

110,819,740
(3,042,972)
36,369,212

13,981,820
158,323,335

J

AR D)
4B JLINLE 2005
%
(2,486,903)

(2,486,903)

51,352,458
(2,486,903)
56,788,000

5,166,186

110,819,740

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 20 to 37.
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for the year ended 30 june 2006
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Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest and other costs of finance paid
Income tax paid

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds on sale of
investment securities

Interest received

Payment for property, plant and
equipment

Development costs paid
Amounts advanced to related parties

Net cash provided by/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from finance activities
Proceeds from issues of equity securities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash provided by/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent_s at the
end of the year

8

1,173,849
(2,166,263)
(1,308,464)

(25,002)

(2,325,880)

77,614
(3,243,003)

(5,655,682}

8,821,072

13,788,070
645,076
(1,732,250)

12,700,897
1,553,945
631,51

2,185,456

46,867
(4,761,741)
{829,092)

(5,543,966)

3,201,989
(12,727)
(189,418)

(2,470,783)

529,061

4,929,228

4,929,228
(85,677)
717,188

631,511

391,391
(1,044,306)
(1,304,375)

(25,002)

(1,982,292)

35,557
(3,237,678)

(6,116,793}
133,657

(9,185,257)

13,788,070
645,076
(1,732,250)

12,700,897
1,533,348
573,586

2,106,934

46,827
(1,579,665)
(840,887)

(2,352,869)

20,856
(196,845)

(2,470,783)

(2,667,629)

4,929,228

4,929,228
(91,270)

664,856

1

573,586

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 20 to 37.
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notes to the financial statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following significant accounting policies have
been adopted in the preparation and presentation of
the yearly financial report:

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report,
which has been prepared in accordance with Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS), other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues
Croup Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001.

Statement of Compliance

The financial report complies with Australian
Accounting Standards which include  AIFRS.
Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial
statements and notes thereto of the Company comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The parent entity financial statements and notes also
comply with IFRS, except where it has been elected to
apply the relief provided to parent entities in respect of
certain disclosure requirements contained in AASB 132
Financial Instruments: Presentations and Disclosure.

This is the first financial report for the company based
on AIFRS and the comparatives for the year ended 30
June 2005 have been restated accordingly. There are
no reconciliation adjustments from AGAAP to AIFRS
equity and profit.

Basis of consolidation

The financial report of the Citigold Corporation Group
(“the consolidated entity”) includes the consolidation
of Citigold Corporation Limited and its respective
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
parent entity. Control exists where either parent entity
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial report from the date control commences until
the date control ceases. Where the Citigold Corporation
Group's interest is less than 100 per cent, the interest
attributable to outside shareholders is reflected in
minority interests. The effects of all transactions
between entities within the Citigold Corporation Group
have been eliminated.

Basis of measurement
The financial report is drawn up on a basis of historical
cost principles

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and cash in banks.

Comparative amounts
When the presentation or classification of items in
the yearly financial report is amended, comparative
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amounts shall be reclassified unless the reclassification
is impracticable,

Employee benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
long service leave when it is probable that settlement
will be required and they are capable of being
measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits
expected to be settled within 12 months are measured
at their nominal values using the remuneration rate
expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which
are not expected to be settled within 12 months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows to be made by the consolidated entity
in respect of services provided by employees up to
reporting date.

Exploration, evaluation and development
expenditure

Development expenditure activities are capitalised.
Exploration and evaluation expenditure is capitalised
when:

« |tis expected that the expenditure will be recouped
by future exploitation or sale; or

* Substantial exploration and evaluation activities
have identified a mineral resource with sufficient
certainty that permits a reasonable assessment of
the existence of commercially recoverable reserves.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the consclidated entity reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the consolidated entity estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the period, using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by




the reporting date. Current tax for current and prior
periods is recognised as a liability {or asset) to the
extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

Tax consolidation

The parent entity company and all its wholly-
owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax
consolidated group under Australian taxation law.
Citigold Corporation Limited is the head entity in the
tax-consolidated group.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
for receivables and payables which are recognised
inclusive of GST.

The net amount of G5T recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement
on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is classified as operating cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to inventory on
hand using the first in first out method.

Leased assets

Assets held under leases which result in entities in
the consolidated entity receiving substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset (finance
leases) are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the property, plant and equipment or the estimated
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding finance lease obligation is included
within interest bearing liabilities. The interest element
isallocated to accounting periods during the lease term
to reflect a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the obligation for each accounting period.

Operating lease assets are not capitalised and rental
payments are included in the Income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Payables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are
recognised when entities in the consolidated entity
become obliged to make future payments resulting
from the purchase of goods and services,

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of praperty, plantand equipment
(including the original capital expenditure and any
subsequent capital expenditure) is depreciated to its
residual value over the useful economic lives of the
specific assets concerned or the life of the mine or
lease, if shorter. The major categories of property,

plant and equipment are depreciated on a unit of
praduction and/or straight-line basis as follows:

* Buildings - 20 years
* Plant, machinery and equipment — 4 to 50 years
* Vehicles — 5 to 8 years straight-line

» Computer systems - up to 8 years straight-line

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to
write off the net cost or other re-valued amount of each
asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual
value. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is
the shorter, using the straight line method.

Depreciation rates and methods shall be reviewed at least
annually and, where changed, shall be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate. Where depreciation rates
or methods are changed, the net written down value of
the asset is depreciated from the date of the change in
accordance with the new depreciation rate or method.
Depreciation recognised in prior financial years shall not
be changed, that is, the change in depreciation rate or
method shall be accounted for on a ‘prospective’ basis.

Provision for restoration and rehabilitation

Entities in the consolidated entity are generally
required to decommission and rehabilitate mine and
processing sites at the end of their producing lives
to a condition acceptable to the relevant authorities
and consistent with its environmental policies. The
expected cost of any approved decommissioning or
rehabilitation programme, discounted toits net present
value, is provided when the related environmental
disturbance occurs, based on the its interpretation of
environmental and regulatory requirements.

Expected decommissicning and rehabilitation costs are
based on the discounted value of the estimated future cost
of detailed plans prepared for each site. Where there is a
change in the expected decommissioning and restoration
costs, an adjustment is recorded against the carrying value
of the provision and any related asset, and the effect is
then recognised in the Income Statement on a prospective
basis over the remaining life of the operation.

The provisions referred to above do not include any
amounts related to remediation costs associated with
unforeseen circumstances. Such costs are recognised
when environmental contamination as a result of oil and
chemical spills, seepage or other unfarseen events gives
rise to a loss which is probabile and reliably estimable. The
cost of other activities to prevent and control pollution is
charged to the Income Statement as incurred.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the consclidated entity has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Other income
Other income is recognised on a receivable basis.
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2. OTHER INCOME

VIRAREREED  WAR [EhOED EAD ENBED VAR FNBIHD
B ONS N B 05 IR OY| SN P00 S ON W I E92 0GR G M A B2 00 5

$ 8 $ $
B Interest Received 77,615 20,945 35,558 20,856
Equipment Hire 4,500 6,705 4,500 6,705
Q Government Rebates 24,260 40,162 24,260 40,162
% Net Profit on sale of assets 39,987 - 39,987 -
&
~ Brilliant Gold Reef Project - expenses reimbursed - - 354,545 443,182
Contra Earnings - advertising 178,000 - - -
T [ Total 324362 67,812 458,850 510,864 |
2
e
=
= 3. OTHER EXPENSES
=
% CORSOUDATD TIIE COMPANY ]
e VEAR EED VEARMNEED  TRARERNEED  YEARIGNED
B ON N B0 CORE ()] B 1N E370 0 SEE OF o I\ HIP 6 OGRS U U W 92 (105
) $ 5 §
_/ Insurance 143,568 25,155 143,568 25,155
n Office administration costs 474,188 281,285 417,085 241,018
C
g Corporate administration 603,342 288,590 377,768 224,382
% Tenement charges & costs 86,273 105,223 86,273 105,223
3
% / Travel expenses 167,503 261,164 41,299 181,148
é Professional fees 138,616 135,558 130,409 121,473
c
‘i Consumabies 26,275 217 26,275 217
E Loss on currency transactions 9,132 - 15,700 -
| p Royalty . (190,000} - {190,000)
= [ Total 1,648,897 907,192 1,238,377 708,616 |

4. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

(GONSE W DAEE) i O MEAT

VEARGNOMD  VEARGNIOMD VAR CNDED VAR BB
D URTE 006 O [UNE A0S 30 VRIS D URG 20
§ G 8 8

Audit Services

Audit and review of financial reports
— Nexia Court & Co

Other regulatory Services - Nexia Court & Co 20,000 12,581 20,000 12,581

9,636 14,298 6,288 14,298
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

EO NSO M DANES e SO

WEAR FNIEED
BRI NN P0G

NN
3]

Prima facie income tax benefit calculated at

30% (2005: 30%) on the (loss)/profit

(1,278,861)

Decrease / (Increase) in income tax benefit due to:

Temporary differences

Deferred income tax asset not recognised

36,728
1,242,133

Income tax attributable to net loss for year -

At 30 June 2006 consolidated defe
forward income tax losses calculated at a tax rate of 30% (30 June 200

At 30 June 2006 the parent entity had d
arising from carried forward income tax

not been recognised as an asset.

The benefit of these losses will only be cbtained it:

(i)
(i)
(iii)

WA RIS
Ol W P20

5§

(1,772,600)

59,193
1,713,407

Wl ERIED
RO U NP UG
5

(912,892)

36,728
1,242,133

WA D

BN Bt i

(746,071)

49,997
696,074

rred tax assets of $17,477,342 (316,235,209 at 30 June 2005) arising from carried
$ 30%) have not been recognised as an asset.

eferred tax assets of $14,409,914 (313,167,781 at 30 |une 2005)
losses calculated at a tax rate of 30% (30 June 2005 30%) which have

the company and / or the consolidated entity derive future assessable income is derived of a nature and
of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deduction for the losses to be realised;
the company and / or the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility

imposed by tax legislation; and

future changes in tax legislation do not adversely impact on the utilisation of the carried forward tax losses.

At 30 {une 2006 and 30 June 2005 the consolidated entity had a nil balance on the franking credit account.

6.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per s
shareholders of $4,262,815 ($5,908,668 in 2005) an

during the financial year ended 30 June 2006 of 513,804,746 (458,293,482 in

Profit (loss) for the period*®

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

R

Issued ordinary shares at 1 July

Effect of shares issued in July

Effect of share purchase plan September
Effect of shares issued in September
Effect of shares issued in December
Effect of shares issued in January
Effect of share purchase plan February
Effect of shares issued in February
Effect of share purchase plan March
Effect of shares issued in March

Effect of shares issued in April

Effect of shares issued in June

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating basic earnings per share

hare at 30 June 2006 was based in the loss attributable to ordinary
d weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
2005), calculation as follows:

—

CORSOILI 52 |

L&

WA ERIIEE HE

F)

LN TR b
3 LA O

JedRIE 2080 JSNUFSCOE T
(4,262,815) (5,908,668)
458,293,482 418,672,412
13,243,487 -
10,365,263 -
8,703,658 14,364,575
- 7,727,821
6,052,137 685,388
4,543,478 -
7,020,547 -
- 6,899,380
5,210,239 -
54,110 -
318,345 -
513,804,746 458,293,482 ]

*ail attributable to ordinary shareholders
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Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of basic €arnings per share at 30 June 2006 was based in the loss attributable to ordinary

QONSON D AKED)
RAPAREEN B B YIRS TN
_ BRNEAS S 0 LN A 5

Profit (loss) for the period* (4,262,815) (5,908,668)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Weighted average of ordinary shares at 30 June 513,804,746 448,349,576

Effect of options issued before 1 june not exercised by 30 June 12,066,999 12,906,999

Effect of options issued through out the year not exercised by 30 June 2,724,901 -

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
calculating diluted earnings per share

328,596,646 471,200,481

7. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
-

“off attributable to ordinary sharehoiders

QO INSG) M AN ) T Oy
VN RO NG o) VAR ENEED AR TS
W LRE A a JRE QWS X8 LN AR EONEN P (05
& ) ) B)

Net Loss for the year (4,262,869) (5,909,099) (3,042,972 (2,486,903)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 940,771 831,531 936,862 828,498
Interest received (77,614) (35,557)
Conversion of options 236,956 236,956
Foreign exchange losses 9,131 - 15,700 -
Net profit on sale of assets (39,987) 2,350,273 (39,987) -
{Increase)/ decrease in Trade and other receivables 970,188 {2,297,328) 11,185 {1,164,820)
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories (54,492) - (54,492) 179,108
(Decrease)/ increase in trade and other receivables 362,031 (749,01 7) 400,008 -
Increase/ (decrease) in Employee provisions (173,039 (7.282) (173,039) 54,292
2’:;23;2 Provided by/ (used in) (2325880)  (5,543,966) (1,982,292) (2352,869)
8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
T CORSOLDAD (O
REARER D HE B R R VIARINTED AL IEs
! EUBO 2 S UORE NN NTE) 0 S () JRE TG 00 LR s
| | . s N S T
Bank Balances 308,019 631,511 229,497 573,586

1,877,437 - 1,877,437 -

Call deposits

Cash and cash equivaients in the cash

flow statement 2,185,456 631,511 2,106,934
e
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9. RECEIVABLES

IR RIS
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Current
Trade debtor 1,330,997 2,298,086 2,635,184 2,261,500
Trade debtor (Other) - - - 8,086
Security Bonds 22225 22,225 17,934 17,934
Prepayments 2,453 4,552 2,453 4,552
Receivables (wholly owned subsidiaries) - - (398,444) 853,597
GST paid by company on acquisitions 121,706 - 121,706 -
[Total 1,477,381 2324863 2,378,833 3,145,669

10. INVENTORIES

UONIROUIHATTHD

VEAT BROED  TVRAR SIED
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§

MG RaE M EATY
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$ 5 $ 3 ]
Current
Raw materials and consumabiles 485,570 431,078 485,570 431,078
Cold Nuggets - 7,727 - 7,727
Total 485,570 438,805 485570 438,805
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11. PLANT, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

CORSOUDATED

| VAR GNOED  VEAGCRDED  VHAGENGED  VEAR ENDED
BN A0 0 JURE AT

g

§

T COMPRRY
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PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT Exploration, Evaluation and Development expenditure

Costs brought forward in respect of areas of
interest:

Costs incurred in period
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Total exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure

34,715,544

4,590,703
(1,142,988)

38,163,259

32,244,760

2,470,783
(1,142,988)

33,572,555

34,715,544

4,590,703
(1,142,988)

38,163,259

32,244,760

2,470,783
(1,142,988)

33,572,555

The ultimate recoupment of costs carried forward for exploration and evaluation expenditure is dependent
on the successiul development and commercial exploitation or sale of the respective areas.

Mining Tenements - at independent valuation

Independent valuation brought forward 74,439,915 17,651,915 69,432,625 12,644,625
Net revaluation increment 36,695,212 56,788,000 36,695,212 56,788,000
Less: Accumulated amortisation - - - -
Total mining tenements __111,135127 _ 74,439,915 106,127,837 69,432,625
Freehold Land and Buildings - at directors’ valuation
Carrying amount at beginning of year 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
Carrying amount at end of year 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
Plant and Equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 5,315,302 5,957,414 5,273,210 5,917,589
Additions during year 1,620,977 189,419 1,616,206 184,118
Less: depreciation charged in year (940,771) (831,531) (936,862) ‘ (828,497}
Carrying amount at end of year 5,995,508 5,315,302 5,952,554 5,273,210
PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT CARRYING VALUES
g:gfggf{ﬁ:‘e E‘t’ac';ftti"” and Development 39,306,247 34,715,543 39,306,247 34,715,543
Less: Accumulated amortisation (1,142,988) (1,142,988) (1,142,988) (1,142,988)
Carrying value at 30 June 38,163,259 33,572,555 38,163,259 33,572,555
Mining Tenements at Fair Value 111,135,127 74,439,915 106,127,836 69,432,625
Less: Accumulated amortisation - - - -
Carrying value at 30 June 111,135,127 74,439,915 106,127,836 69,432,625
Freehold Land and Buildings at Directors Valuation 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
Less: Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Carrying value at 30 June 518,548 518,548 518,548 518,548
Plant and Equipment at Fair Value 9,453,266 7,832,289 9,402,814 7,786,607
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,457,758) (2,516,987) (3.450,260) (2,513,397)
Carrying value at 30 June 5,995,508 5,315,302 5,952,554 5,273,210
[Total Carrying value 155,796,726 113,924,328 150,746,482 108,541,217 |
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Leased Plant and Machinery

Entities in the consolidated entity lease production equipment under a number of finance lease agreements.
At the end of each lease the entity has the option to purchase the equipment at a beneficial price. At 30 June
2006 the net carrying amount of leased plant and Machinery was $1,173,140. The lease equipment secures

lease obligations.

Independent Valuation

The valuation was conducted by T.V. Willsteed, BEng(Hons), BA, FAusiMM, MMICA, of Terence Willsteed &
Associates Pty Limited, consulting mining engineers and independent valuers of mining assets. Mr Terence
Willsteed is a mining engineer with over 48 years experience in mining operations, mineral processing, corporate

management and consulting practice.

12. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CONSEL 1D

RGET NI ) Hie)

RO W PR
9
Security deposit against restoration costs
lodged with the Department of Mines and 509,257
Energy

Investments in subsidiary companies at costs -

Total 509,257

Wl HREED
L B e HE )
)

509,257

509,257
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505,304 505,304

10,597,477 10,597,477
11,102,781 11,102,781

13. INVESTMENTS
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Current investments
Li§ted equity securities Available for Sale - at 2,282,000 ) 2,282,000 )
fair value
14, PAYABLES
e

VAR LREEE

" B

CUBELNERREC R SN s

Current
Trade Creditor (wholly owned subsidiaries) 1,061,493
Sundry Creditors and accrued Expenses 434,556

Amounts Payable to wholly owned subsidiaries -
Amounts Payable to partly owned subsidiaries -

FBT Payable -
Total " 1,496,049

337,230
1,259,585

1,596,815

1,052,737 305,021
432,557 1,301,014

- 817,391

- 300,994

1,485,204 2,724,420
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15. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

 CONSOUBATD THIE CORPARY

VEAD (RO VEARGNDED  VEARITNIED VAR ERIGED)

0N BN COOE CF DN TP U W NP GO (J SN P00
5 9 8 5

i

Current

Unsecured Liabilities

Loans from specified director related Entities 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Convertible notes 1,813,583 - 1,813,583 -
2,113,583 300,000 2,113,583 300,000
Secured Liabilities
Loans from unrelated parties 4,990,514 7,490,514 4,990,514 7,490,514
Finance Lease Liabilities 219,783 - 219,783 -
Hire Purchase Liabilities 209,756 39,570 209,756 39,570
5,420,053 7,530,084 5,420,053 7,530,084
Total 7,533,636 7,830,084 7,533,636 ' 7,830,084

Non Current

Unsecured Liabilities

Convertible notes . 1,663,583 - 1,663,583
- 1,663,583 - 1,663,583

Secured Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities 587,539 - 587,539 -
Hire Purchase Liabilities 385,416 20,929 385,416 20,929
20,929 20,929
Total 972955 1,684,512 972,955 1,684,512

Security Loans to unrelated parties

The unrelated party lcan facility extended to the Company is secured by:

(i} Afirst registered fixed and floating charge over all assets and undertakings of the company: and

(i} A first registered mortgage over all mining leases and mineral development licences held by the Company

Finance Lease Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities of the consolidated entity are payable as follows

- CORSCUDATED !

e INTEREST ERINGEAT l
Less then 1 year ) 289,609 ) 69,826 ) 219,783
Between 1 and 5 years 674,184 86,646 587,539
More then 5 years - - -
Total 963,793 ) 156,472 ) 807,322

The consolidated entity’s lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets of 31,173,140 (2005: nil}. In the event of default, the
leased assets revert to the lessor.
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Convertible Notes
In March 2007 note holders have the option to receive one ordinary share for every note held. Notes that are
not converted to ordinary shares will be redeemed at face value.

Hire Purchase Liabilities
Hire Purchase liabilities of the consolidated entity are payable as follows

-— -

CTONSEN 53
WITRIINEIE L i AT

. REEAYSIBO N ) R S “ RN GRS
Less than 1 year 252,984 40,287 209,756
Between 1 and 5 years 457,671 75,196 385,416

More than 5 years - - -
{Totat 710,655 115,483 595,172

The consolidated entity’s lease labilities are secured by the leased assets of §1,173,140 (2005: nii). In the event of default, the
leased assets revert to the lessor.

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Share based payments
No share based payments are made to any employees of the consolidated entity.

17. PROVISIONS

CORNSEL A it RGOV 2ANLY ]
VA CUAED RAN KIS VAR EDED AL TR
B O NP6 GO O 8 B I G 6 SN GF W ATH 56 GRS G SR P (45
9 $ % b

Current Provisions

Employee entitlements 264,641 178,388 264,641 178,388
Total 264,641 178,388 264,641 178,388 |
Non Current Provisions

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental 505,304 505,304 505,304 505,304
Employee entitlements 17,434 59,609 17,434 59,609
Total 522,738 564913 522738 564913 |

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental

The provision for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental work has been classified as a non-current
provision as the obligation to perform such work will only arise on the cessation of mining. The provision, which
has not been discounted to present value, is fully funded by a cash deposit of an equal or greater amount held
by the Queensland Department of Mines and Energy.

Employee Entitlements
At 30 June 2006 the consolidated entity and the Company had 40 equivalent full time employees (2005: 23)
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18. ISSUED CAPITAL

Reconciliation of movement in issued capital of the parent entity

A AR A T Uy 265 KR, A0 78,599/ |
Movements in Issued Capital as follows:

{mﬁf ) DIETALS R CEERICOE §MI§5_ (SSSUE, BNy BT Iﬂiﬂ((? ) % ]
05/07/05 Ordinary Share issue 5,400,000 10 cents 540,000
28/07/05 Ordinary Share Issue 8,533,943 10 cents 853,394
24/10/05 Ordinary Share Issue 15,133,284 12.5 cents 1,891660
09/09/05 Ordinary Share Issue 10,268,933 10 cents 1,026,893
09/09/05 Ordinary Share Issue 500,000 15 cents 75,000
11/01/06 Ordinary Share Issue 13,430,000 11 cents 1,477,300
28/02/06 Ordinary Share Issue 18,016,013 15 cents 2,702,402
28/02/06 Ordinary Share Issue 16,300,000 16 cents 2,608,000
01/03/06 Conversion of Options 340,000 15 cents 51,000
17/03/06 Conversion of Options 17,549,596 15 cents 2,632,439
13/04/06 Conversion of Options 250,000 15 cents 37,500
03/05/06 Conversion of Options 383,334 15 cents 57,500
25/05/06 Conversion of Options 2,529,164 15 cents 379,375
Capital raising costs allocated against issued capital (350,644}
Total Movement for the year 108,634,267 13,981,820
Balance at 30 June 2006 ) 566,927,749 87,521,310

Share options

The terms, amount and number of options are as follows:

VAR FNIEED 39 VAR ENEHD 30
W B J W D B2 005
- 7 % $

A Blmbe of 15 cent options on et 30 une, e
Exercise Price 15 Cents 15 Cents
Expiry date 06-Dec-06 06-Dec-06

B cNounT:r?cirbcl); :c? cfsztocr)c?itri\z?; ?l:]aj'sesue 2 30]June, each 2,724,901 )
Exercise Price 15 Cents -
Expiry date 17-Mar-08 -

citigold corporation limted



Movement in share options

The movement in the company’s share options during the year ended 30 |une 2006 were as follows:

[ANH DTS

09/09/05 Issue exercise price 15 cents, expiry date 6 Dec 2006
28/02/06 Issue exercise price 15 cents, expiry date 6 Dec 2006

01/03/06 Conversion of options expiring 6 Dec 2006

17/03/06 Issue exercise price 15 cents, expiry date 17 Mar 2008

13/04/06 Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar 2008

03/05/06 Conversion of options expiring 6 Dec 2006
03/05/06 Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar 2008

25/05/06 Conversion of options expiring 6 Dec 2006

25/05/06 Conversion of options expiring 17 Mar 2008

Total Movement for the year

DTN B ERE) BN B
O Rl O NSIEEER GKORZRIGH
500,000 . )
500,000 -
(340,000) 15 cents
4,387,399 -
(250,000) 15 cents
(333,334) 15 cents
(50,000) 15 cents
(1,166,666) 15 cents
(1,362,498) 15 cents
©1,884901

I
porg il

(51,000)
(37,500)
(50,000)
(7,500)
(175,000
(204,375)

| (525,375)

19. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated losses at beginning of year
Net loss for the year

Net changes in cutside equity interests

[ Totat 7
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© (37,019,170)

(4,262,815)
54

" (41,397,830)

RAFAY BT ) B
RE® N HZ 66 5
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(31,209,204)

(5,908,668)
98,701

" (37,019,170)
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(31,532,573)
(3,042,972)

(34,380,011)
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(29,045,671)

(2,486,503)

©(31,532,573)
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20. RESERVES

. (QONSONIFAER] | ik BEEV BANY
CVRARENDED  VRARGNDHD  VEARENOHD VAR HNBED
EON N ERZ00 G ON U N B2 (10 ST ON BIN B0 0GRS O] VN EE (0.5
8 % 5) )
A Composition:
Asset Revaluation Reserve 105,508,036 68,812,824 105,508,036 68,812,824
Capital Profits Reserve 571,430 571,430 - -
Available for sale assets revaluation reserve (326,000) - (326,000) -
Total 105,753,466 69,384,254 105,182,037 68,812,824
B Movements: Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 68,812,824 12,024,824 68,812,824 12,024,824
Revaluation increase during the year 36,695,212 56,788,000 36,695,212 56,788,000
| Balance at end of year 105,508,036 68,812,824 105,508,036 68,812,824 |
Movements: Capital Profits Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 571,430 571,430 - -
| Balanceatendofyear 571,430 571,430 - -]
Movements: Fair Value Reserve
Balance at beginning of year - - - -
Revaluation (decrease)/fincrease during the year (326,000) - (326,000) -
| Balance at end of year - "@3260000 - (3260000 -]

C  Asset Revaluation

The asset revaluation reserve contains net revaluation increments and decrements arising on the

revaluation of non-current assets.

Capital Profits

Upon disposal of re-valued assets, and increments standing to the credit of the asset revaluation reserve

is transferred to the capital profits reserve.

Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve includes cumulative net change in the fair value of available for sale investments

until the investment is derecognised.

21. COMMITMENTS

. CONSOHDARED) . i OO MEATKY
VEAGGNDED  TRARGNDED  RARTNGRD  YRARENDED
5011 W1 P OOCIE OF N B2 00 ST OF| O N 200 SRS O MR B 00 )
8 | ) 9 | )
Finance Lease Commitments Payable:
- not later than one year 289,609 44140 289,609 44,140
- later than one year but not later than five years 674,184 22,520 674,184 22,520
Minimum lease payments 963,793 66,660 963,793 66,660
Less future finance charges (156,472) (6,160) (156,472) {(6,160)
[Total lease liability 807,322 60,500 807,322 60,500 |

The finance leases commitments are for finance leases over office equipment, motor vehicles and portable items of
plant. The leases are on normal commercial terms and conditions and are for terms of between cne and four years,
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Exploration expenditure commitments.

The consolidated entity and the Company have the following discretionary exploration expenditure
commitments in respect of exploration and mining tenements to maintain current rights of tenure.
These commitments may be reduced by renegotiation upon renewal of the tenements, or by relinquishment

of tenure.
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Exploration expenditure commitments payable:

- not later than one year 425,000 425,000 425,000 425,000
- later than one year but not later than five years 1,439,291 805,000 1,439,291 805,000
[ Total 1,864,291 1,203,000 1,864,291 _ 1,203,000 |

Operating lease commitments

Operating Lease Commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in

the financial statements

CORSCILDATD
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Operating lease commitments Payable:
- not later than one year 252,984 38,140 252,984 38,140
- later than one year but not later than five years 457,671 62,091 457,671 62,091
[Total 710,655 100,230 710,655 100,230

The general terms of the operating lease commitments disclosed above are:

i. anon - cancellable property lease with an term of 3 years. Renlis payable monthly in advance. Provisions within
the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by the lower of CPl or 4% per
annum. An option exists to renew the lease for a further period of three years at the end of the lease term.

ii. Non - cancellable leases for rental of office equipment with initial terms of between 3 and 5 years. Rentals
are payable monthly. The agreements do not contain escalation clauses. Options exist to renew the leases

annually at the end of the lease term.

22. CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

RN R @ OWNBRSH B (W N BRSO D B
RETIRAENER, RUHEST AR IRWHEES Ay RESIEOLLER,
Charters Towers Gold Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 50ct 1995
Charters Towers Mines Pty Ltd Australia 91.5 91.5 14 Mar 1984
Charters Technology Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 13 Jan 2000
Gold Management Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 28 Jan 2000
Gold Projects Pty Ltd Austratia 100 100 25 |an 2000
Great Mines Limited Australia 100 100 19 Mar 1984
Deeprock Mining Pty Limited Australia 81.2 81.2 18 Jun 1984
Citigold FZCO UAE 100 100 11 Dec 2002
Queensland Gold Mines Pty Limited Australia 100 100 27 Feb 2006

Incorporation of subsidiary

Queensland Gold Mines Pty Limited was incorporated by the entity during the year. No assets or liabilities were

acquired during this incorporation.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, interest rate risk and currency risk arise in the normal course of the consolidated entity’s
business. No hedging of this risk is undertaken by the consolidated entity.

I RE 2005 EON DN 2005
CHTVING EATR] (@ARRYING) STEAR [NEED
AT/ ) D VAT H AT RO BN 7005]
) § )
Fair Values
Equity Securities available for sale 2,608,000 2,282,000 - -
Trade and other receivables 1,355,675 1,355,675 2,324,863 2,324,863
Cash and cash equivatents 2,185,456 2,185,456 631,51 631,511
Convertible notes (1,813,583) (1,813,583) (1,663,583) (1,663,583)
Loan from associate (300,000) (300,000) (300,000} {300,000}
Trade and other payables (1,063,493) (1,063,493) (1,596,813) (1,596,813)
Total 2,972,055 2,646,055 (604,022) (604,022)
[Unrecognised (losses)/ gains - (326,660) N - - \I

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The term loan secured with a fixed and floating charge
over Citigold Corporation and its subsidiaries has
been paid in full. No other matters or circumstances
have arisen since the end of the half year that have
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the
operations, results of operations or state of affairs of the
consolidated entity in subsequent accounting periods.

25. GOING CONCERN

The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. As in previous financial periods,
the ability of the consolidated entity to meets its
expenditure commitments and progress with its
development and exploration program is dependent
upon continued capital raising.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the previous accounting pericd, the entity
entered into an agreement with the trustee of a related
unit trust to pay future royalties from gold production.
The consideration received for the royalties payable in
the future has been recorded as revenue.

The amount and timing of the payments by the
entity is contingent on a number of future events and
circumnstances, such as the future price of gold and
the timing and amount of gold production. The effect
of these circumstances cannot be accurately predicted
at the date of signing these financial statements. In
general terms the minimum amount payable under
the agreement is nil and the maximum amount
payable is 1.4% of the value of 40,000 ounces of gold
plus one million dollars ($1,000,000).

citigold corpoeration limted

27. SEGMENT REPORTING

The consolidated entity operates in the mining
exploration industry. Details of the mining exploration
aclivities are set out in the review of operations. Each
company within the consolidated entity operates
within the one geographic area, being Australia.

28. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
DISCLOSURES

(a) Directors

The following persons were Directors of Citigold
Corporation Ltd during the financial year:

+ || Foley — Non-executive Chairman
+ M | Lynch — Managing Director
¢ Dr P B Blood — Non-executive Director

(b} Other Key Management Personnel

The following persons also have authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly,
during the financial year:

C A | Towsey — Chief Operating Officer
G Foord - General Manager Engineering
| F Lynch - Site Senior Executive

R | Morrison - Exploration Manager

M B Martin - Company Secretary™

R | Shand — Company Secretary*

* Held this position for part of the year

All the above persons were also Key Management Personnel
during the year ended 30 June 2006 and are all employees of
Citigold Corporation Limited.



(¢) Key management personnel compensation

@) NS ) 1 o At PR ]
A ALY . 280! AL '
) ) g ) 8 ‘ B
Short term employee benefits 1,211,638 1,193,089 948,138 816,381
Post employment benefits 75,397 105,406 53,444 84,436
Share based payments - - - -
[ Total 1,287,035 1,298495 1,001,582 900,817

The company has taken advantage of the relief provided by under the Corporations Regulations and has
transferred the detailed remuneration disclosures to the Directors Report (item 11).

(d) Key management personnel equity interest

Shares
The number of shares held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

BATAT GHFAYM YT T et EREN [ i
ZX00005 Uli/l’}. Q\\/%J/(:)] “zé')i‘:}((;h,? k(z “‘l\gmzj% i
VTRE AR Y SLJING THEE AR Jl
Directors
| | Foley 4,800,964 - - 4,800,964
M ] Lynch 86,668,013 - 106,600 86,774,613
Dr P B Blood - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel
C A | Towsey 269,666 - 95,334 365,000
G Foord 320,000 - (185,000) 135,000
| F Lynch 86,668,013 - 106,600 86,774,613
R ] Morrison 266,000 100,000 (40,803) 325,197
M B Martin - - - -
R ] Shand - - - -

Shares
The number of shares held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

EALANET AT ©THIER WAL AR A

BALANC FERCS OF i .
2005 T ST ot e N OF CHANGS D 8

U VEAR SURNG T VI UM YRAR
Directors
| | Foiey 34,723,149 - (30,795,902 4,800,964
M | Lynch 118,768,558 706,000 (32,806,545) 86,668,013
Dr P B Blood - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel
R ] Shand 29,675,596 - (29,675,596) -
C A | Towsey 161,750 - 107,916 269,666
G Foord - - 320,000 320,000
I F Lynch 118,768,558 706,000 (32,806,545) 86,668,013
M Desai - - - -
R ] Morrison 151,000 - 115,000 266,000
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Options

The number of options held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

f GRANAED
" AN (qHIFAN
2006 K /“i\[%%r IS @ SERG Tl
ANALE Doy SPTERS kaarki
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(O RE ERSIN
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PER@GNABT
A THR TN 6P

i Vil

Directors

| | Foley -

M | Lynch -

Dr P B Blood -

Other Key Management Personnel
C A | Towsey -

G Foord 320,000
| F Lynch -
300,000
M B Martin -

R | Shand -

R | Morrison

Options

(100,000) -

320,000

200,000

320,000

200,000

The number of options held in the Company during the financial year by each Director and each of the Key
Management Personnel of the Group, including related entities, are set out below:

; ’ CRANNER TR W (257D &
- ek G wrE S e VAR g
: EEMENERASION REARS Tl VAR

Directors
| | Foley 5,000,000 (873,717) - (7,294,000) - -
M | Lynch 8,000,000  (706,000) - (4,126,283) . -
Dr P B Bloed - - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel
R ) Shand - - - - - -
C A | Towsey - - - - - -
G Foord - - - 320,000 320,000 320,000
} F Lynch - - - - - -
R ) Morrison - - - 300,000 300,000 300,000
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(e) Other transactions with Key Management Personnel
The following amounts were loaned to the company by a related party of the following Director
and Key Management Personnel.
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Directors

| | Foley - - - -

M | Lynch 300,000 - - 300,000
Dr P B Blood - - - -
Other Key Management Personnel

R | Shand - - - -

C A ) Towsey - - - -

G Foord - - - -

] F Lynch 300,000 - - 300,000

R ) Morrison - - - -

28. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO AE —IFRS

Reconciliation of Income Statement

The adoption of A-IFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Income statement
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet

The adoption of A-IFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Balance Sheet.
Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement

The adoption of A-IFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Cash Flow Statement.

director’s declaration

The Directors Declare that:
(a) The financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:

(i) comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements in Australia;

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows,
for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b} In the director’s opinion, there are reascnable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable; and

(c) The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer/chief financial officer for the
financial year ended 30 June 2006 pursuant to Section 295A of the Corporations Act.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors

] ) Foley @p% M ] Lynch
Chairman 1 Director

30 September, 2006
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auditor’s report

NEXIA
COURT
&SCO

Xl A
INTERNATIONAL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED

Scope

The financial report, remuneration disclosures and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement,
statements of changes in equity, accompanying notes to the financial statements, the
disclosures made as required by Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related
Party Disclosures of the directors report as permitted by Corporations Act Regulation
2M.6.04 (“remuneration disclosures™) and the directors’ declaration, (set out on pages 16
to 37), for both Citigold Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and Citigold Corporation
Limited and its controlled entities (the “consolidated entity™) for the year ended 30 June
2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the Company and the entities it controlled
during the year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This
includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and
for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. The
directors are also responsible for preparing the relevant reconciling information
regarding the adjustments required under the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1
First time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Audit approach

We have conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members
of the Company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is
free of material misstatement and the remuneration disclosures comply with Austratian
Accounting Standard AASB 124 and Corporations Act Regulation 2M.6.04. The nature
of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective
testing, the inherent limitations of internaf control, and the availability of persuasive
rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material
misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and
other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent
with our understanding of the Company's and the consolidated entity’s financial position,
of their performance as represented by the resuits of their operations and cash flows and
whether the remuneration disclosures comply with Australian Accounting Standard
AASB 124 and Corporation Act Regulation 2M.6.04.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

ABN 71 502 156 733

Level 29, Austia'a Square,

264 Cernge Street
Sydney NGV 3000

PO Box H195,

Austiaba Square NSW 1215
D156, Sydney Stock Exchange
161 29251 4600

P61 28251 7138
lofnedaowt momau
e

Partrers

Stephen 1 Rogens
ian D Stone

Stuart H Cameron
Paud W Leron

Ned R Hman
Stephen W Davis
David W Callery
Foben A Mclanmess
Kirsten Taykor-Martn
Andrew 5 Hofimann
Croeme L iarman
Oavd R Cust

Craig | Wiford

Sean P Urquhast

Consltant

Perer | Cowdroy

NEA COURT & OO 15 A MEMEER CF
NEGA WTERATONAL « AWCRLWDE
WO OF INDEPLNOERT ACCOUNT.NG
AN CONSURTING FIRMS.

{ABITY LASTED 8Y &
SCHEWE APPROVED LNDER
PROFTSSICAAL STANDMALS

c'w“r LECHSLANCH
Taunihu
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
(Continued)

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and
. assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.
!
|
While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal. controls over financial
reporting when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed
to provide assurance on internal controls. '

4

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian

professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Citigold Corporation Limited is in accordance with:

a the Corporations Act 2001, including;

i giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial
position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;
and

ii complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

¢ The remuneration disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration report forming part
of the Directors’ Report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related
Party Disclosures and Corporations Act Regulation 2M.6.04.

Nowrte Coust . Lo e

Nexia Court & Co Stephe{i::g:rs
Chartered Accountants Partner

Dated at Sydney; 30 September 2006
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ASX additional information

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed
elsewhere in this Report.

1. SHAREHOLDINGS as at 29 September, 2006

Distribution of members and their holdings:

— I R BELD O oLy
- T * The number of shareholders holding less
1-1,000 1,203 than a marketable parcel of $500 was
1001 — 5.000 1822 1,217 based on a market price of
V) ! ! 44 cents at 29 September, 2006.
&) 5,001 -10,000 1,328
&, 10,001 - 100,000 3,084
100,001 and over 745
2 8,182
| g@ T
W wenty largest shareholders
\_g | e WURTERGE 0 [0
} o - SHARES SHARE CAPTTAL |
; Estate of the late James Joseph Lynch 68,534,983 11.83
S} Mr Kok Leong Tan 22,900,000 3.95
ANZ Nominees Ltd (Cash Income A/C}) 17,634,065 3.04
Underwriting and Mining Investment Corporation Pty Ltd 9,707,732 1.67
—/ Rosa and Sons Investments Pty Ltd (Rosa & Sons Const 5/Fund a/c) 9,275,382 1.60
Mr lan Robert McPherson & Mrs Ann Elizabeth McPherson (O"Malley Park a/c) 9,248,857 1.60
S Great Pacific Finance Pty Ltd 9,000,000 1.55
E | P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 7,940,070 1.37
A=) Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd 7,716,123 1.33
é - Mr William Jangsing Lee 7,565,132 1.3
E John Francis Lynch 5,669,090 0.98
§ Mr Sidney John Reynolds & Mrs Antoinette Marie Rees 5,667,667 0.98
: Miss Lily Lee 5,500,000 0.95
b Tricom Nominees Pty Ltd (LPG A/C) 4,501,376 0.78
J Mr John Cunningham McBride 4,147,300 0.72
Prime Impact Pty Ltd 3,973,327 0.69
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 3,451,443 0.60
Dr Jayson Wayne Qates 3,433,333 0.59
Bill Ford Nominees Pty Ltd (William Leo Ford A/C) 3,144,657 0.54
Pure Gold Pty Ltd 3,034,866 0.52
[ 212045403 3660 |

Substantial shareholders
Shareholders appearing on the Company’s register of substantial shareholders as at 29 September, 2006 are as follows:

1 \ SHAS |

| A - L NUMR | CERCRIAGE |
Estate of the late James oseph Lynch 68,534,983 11.83
Underwriting and Mining Investment Cerporation Pty Ltd 9,707,732 1.67
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Voting rights
The voting rights attached to each class of security are set out as below:

Ordinary Shares: On a show of hands every member present in person or proxy shall have one vote and upon
a poll each share shall have one vote.

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

See the Corporate Governance section,

3. CORPORATE DIRECTORY

See the Corporate Directory section.

4. RESTRICTED SECURITIES

At the time of this report there are no ordinary shares classified as restricted securities.

5. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The only stock exchange on which the Company has securities quoted is the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.

6. SUMMARY OF MINING TENEMENTS & AREAS OF INTEREST as at
29 September, 2006

The Charters Towers Gold Project is operated solely by Citigold Corporation Limited. The company has a 100%
control of the following mining tenements held by the Charters Towers Gold Project:

EPM 8150 ML 1343 ML 1491 ML 10208

EPM 8563 ML 1344 ML 1499 ML 10222

EPM 8564 ML 1347 ML 1521 ML 10281

EPM 10593 ML 1348 ML 1545 ML 10282

EPM 10861 ML 1385 ML 1548 ML 10283

EPM 11067 ML 1387 ML 1549 ML 10284 ML Mining Lease

MDL Mineral Development Licence

EPM 11658 ML 1398 ML 1581 ML 10285 EPM Exploration Permit Minerals

EPM 13106 ML 1407 ML 1585 MLA Mining Lease Application

MDLA Mineral Development Licence Application
EPM 13182 ML 1408 ML 1586 EPMA Exploration Permit Minerals Application
EPM 13453 ML 1409 ML 1587

EPM 13931 M™ML1424 ML 1735
EPM 13932 ML 1428 ML 10005
EPM 14541 ML 1429 ML 10032
EPM 15091 ML 1430 ML 10042
ML 1431 ML 10048
MDL 116 ML 1432 ML 10050
MDL 118 ML 1433 ML 100N
MDL 119 ML 1472 ML 10093
MDL 251 ML 1488 ML 10193
MDLA 252 ML 1490 ML 10196
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